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          1  POLICE DEPARTMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We will hear

          3  from the Police Department and the Civilian

          4  Complaint Review Board concerning the Expense

          5  Budgets proposed by the Mayor for Fiscal Year 2000

          6  for these agencies.

          7                 The Police Commissioner is in

          8  attendance and I expect the Committee will ask

          9  questions about such matters as the Department's

         10  plan to accelerate the July 1st, 2000 Police Academy

         11  class to January 1st, 2000, where recent graduates

         12  have been deployed; the Department's efforts to stem

         13  the rise in overtime; the present status of E 9-1-1;

         14  the Department's efforts and budgetary needs to cut

         15  back the backlog of Civilian Complaint Review Board

         16  substantiated cases sent for Police Commissioner's

         17  review; and other matters pertaining to the Expense

         18  Budget.

         19                 We will also hear from Executive

         20  Director Gene Lopez and Board Chair Frank Wohl of

         21  the Civilian Complaint Review Board, and I expect

         22  that we will look into such matters as the

         23  possibility of increased funding for the Civilian

         24  Complaint Review Board as the Executive Director had

         25  requested, the present budgeted headcount, case,
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          2  docket and backlog of that agency and the present

          3  state of cooperation between the NYPD and the CCRB

          4  to the extent that this involves budgetary

          5  considerations.

          6                 I would like to thank all of the

          7  participants here today and we look forward to

          8  hearing from everybody.

          9                 Welcome, Commissioner Safir, ladies

         10  and gentlemen. Do you have a prepared statement you

         11  would like to begin with?

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I have.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I would like to

         15  just identify the members of the Committee who are

         16  here. Victor Robles, Madeline Provenzano, Martin

         17  Golden and Stanley Michels, and Andy Grossman is our

         18  Finance staff analyst who was largely involved in

         19  preparation for the hearing and Ted Becker is the

         20  Counsel to the Committee.

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Good

         22  afternoon. The Mayor's Executive Budget for the New

         23  York City Police Department totals $3 billion with

         24  82 percent allocated to salaries of police officers,

         25  nine percent to civilians, four percent to overtime,
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          2  and five percent to OTPS support.

          3                 The Executive Budget provides

          4  increases, as well as decreases, in this

          5  Department's Budget. Since the January Financial

          6  Plan was released, the Fiscal Year 2000 budget has

          7  increased by 120.8 million. The additional funds

          8  reflect the transfer of the 3,400 school safety

          9  employees into the NYPD, the hiring of 600

         10  additional police cadets this July, followed by

         11  another 600 police cadets in July 2000, outfitting

         12  and training of the two police classes, the

         13  promotion of 2,000 detective specialists, the hiring

         14  of 150 additional school crossing guards at the most

         15  heavily trafficked and dangerous locations, the

         16  hiring of six engineers and 95 other employees to

         17  support the enhanced 9-1-1 system, the hiring of 13

         18  fingerprint technicians to ensure that all arrests

         19  are appropriately scrutinized to minimize the

         20  potential for a wanted person to be released after a

         21  minor arrest, the increased Y2K and software

         22  licensing fees, additional overtime costs, and

         23  increased facility lease, heat, light and power

         24  costs.

         25                 The Department's budget was also

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            6

          1  POLICE DEPARTMENT

          2  reduced by $408,000 to reflect a funding shift for

          3  civilian fringe benefits for the Narcotics

          4  Initiative Expansion into the central City account.

          5                 Overtime was also reduced by $475,000

          6  to reflect increased overtime savings predicated

          7  upon the implementation of a new initiative by the

          8  Manhattan District Attorney's Office.

          9                 The use of on-line signature pens is

         10  intended to reduce the faxing and other

         11  administrative processing time for arrest process in

         12  the Borough of Manhattan.

         13                 Another 579,000 was reduced from the

         14  overtime budget associated with savings assumed to

         15  result from the hiring of additional civilians to

         16  replace uniformed staff.

         17                 The net effect to the FY 2000

         18  overtime budget has been an increase of $25 million

         19  when compared to the FY 1999 adopted condition for a

         20  total funding level of 114.7 million.

         21                 This restores funds for operational

         22  and event overtime and more accurately reflects the

         23  increased uniform staffing levels in the Department

         24  and historical spending patterns. It also includes

         25  overtime funding for the merged school safety staff.
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          2                 The overall cost for police-related

          3  overtime reached $147 million in Fiscal Year 1998.

          4  But after adjusting for collective bargaining

          5  increases, the Transit and Housing Police mergers,

          6  the expanded narcotic initiatives and the traffic

          7  enforcement merger, we actually spent less money for

          8  overtime in FY '98 than we did in prior years.

          9                 In FY 1999, we anticipate that we

         10  will spend less than we did in six of the ten prior

         11  fiscal years. Over the past several years we have

         12  worked vigorously to identify strategies for

         13  reducing overtime costs. Some of these strategies

         14  include:  Livescan fingerprinting, video technology,

         15  teleconferencing, mugshot photo-imaging and new

         16  processing strategies developed with valuable

         17  support and input from the District Attorneys. Most

         18  notably the Supporting Deposition Program and the

         19  Expedited Affidavit Program, which have reduced the

         20  cost per arrest by 18 percent over the last four

         21  years. These efficiencies have occurred even while

         22  arrests driven largely by the expanded narcotic

         23  initiatives throughout the City had increased by 34

         24  percent over the same time period.

         25                 We have decreased complaint sworn
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          2  time by 46 percent since FY 1995 and the average

          3  time it takes for an arresting officer to be ready

          4  to swear a complaint has a reached an historic low

          5  of two and a half hours.

          6                 While we clearly have made great

          7  strides in arrest overtime reduction, we will

          8  continue to work with the District Attorneys to

          9  achieve further systematic savings.

         10                 Fiscal Year 2000 is the final year of

         11  prior financial plan reductions to our civilian

         12  headcount.

         13                 In FY 2000, we will lose through

         14  attrition another 190 civilians. This brings the

         15  total City-funded reduction since FY 1993 to over

         16  2000 civilians. During these reductions we were

         17  fortunate to receive federal funds to help mitigate

         18  some of the negative impact of these cuts.

         19                 For instance, 640 civilian positions

         20  were retained with federal funds and over the past

         21  four years we have civilianized just over 1,200

         22  positions throughout the Department.

         23                 The NYPD will continue to seek grant

         24  funds to add to the civilian staffing level of the

         25  Department. The Fiscal Year 2000 budget provides for
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          2  two police academy classes, one in July of 1999 and

          3  the other in January 2000. In these two classes the

          4  hiring of 3,000 new officers will achieve the

          5  highest average precinct staffing levels experienced

          6  in the past quarter century, accompanied by the

          7  highest narcotics enforcement efforts ever.

          8                 We are also seeking to increase

          9  representation of City residents as employees of the

         10  Police Department. In that effort, the NYPD has

         11  entered into an agreement with Arnell Group Brand

         12  Consulting to launch an intensive advertising

         13  campaign designed to attract as many City residents

         14  as possible to become police officers.

         15                 This firm has agreed to provide its

         16  services on a pro-bono basis. Arnell Group will

         17  utilize the $10 million allocated by the Mayor and

         18  the City Council to finance multi-media strategies,

         19  including television and radio commercials, video

         20  and audio tapes, slide shows, movie theater

         21  commercials, advertising and newspapers, periodicals

         22  and on billboards, the production of promotional

         23  items such as buttons, T-shirts, caps and mugs,

         24  flyers, brochures, posters and decals.

         25                 In addition to the paid
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          2  advertisements, public service announcements will

          3  appear on cable within New York City. Marquee

          4  messages will appear on Madison Square Garden,

          5  Yankee Stadium and the Jacob Javits Center, subway

          6  cars will also display recruitment posters.

          7                 This is the most significant

          8  financial commitment ever made toward the

          9  recruitment of new police officers for the City of

         10  New York.

         11                 In conjunction with these advertising

         12  efforts, recruitment stations have been set up in

         13  libraries, recreation centers and police precincts

         14  throughout the City during evening and weekend

         15  hours. A subway outreach initiative has been

         16  implemented to enable the distribution of

         17  applications to reach out to groups throughout the

         18  City at selected subway stations such as the Jamaica

         19  Center, the Franklin Avenue 2, 3, 4 and 5 lines, Van

         20  Cortland Park and 14th Street Union Square, to name

         21  just a few.

         22                 Applications may now be downloaded

         23  from the NYPD web site. In addition to disseminating

         24  career information and literature, the Police

         25  Department will provide free tutorial lessons
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          2  designed to assist candidates to prepare for the

          3  test. A tutorial program is also being offered on

          4  cable stations for those who cannot attend in

          5  person.

          6                 In order to encourage more City

          7  residents to enter this profession, we will

          8  significantly increase the number of cadets in our

          9  college police cadet program, thereby expanding the

         10  pool of City residents eligible for immediate

         11  appointment to the police officer position.

         12                 The Executive Budget provides funds

         13  to expand the Cadet Program by hiring 600 cadets in

         14  July 1999, and an additional 600 in July 2000. To

         15  date, a total of 1,115 applications have been

         16  received, 640 candidates have attended orientation

         17  with an additional 250 scheduled for May 1999.

         18                 Cadet brochures are also available

         19  with police exam applications. When all the

         20  additional cadets are hired, we will have an ongoing

         21  program for approximately 1,375 potential police

         22  officer candidates. As a further means of increasing

         23  city residency in the NYPD, we are in the process of

         24  developing a new police cadet trainee program. This

         25  program is aimed at identifying New York City high
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          2  school seniors and junior college students who would

          3  not yet be eligible for the Cadet Corps. These cadet

          4  trainees would be promoted into the Police Cadet

          5  Corps when they attain 45 college credits.

          6                 In addition, we just recently

          7  obtained approval from the Department of Citywide

          8  Administrative Services to enable both Traffic

          9  Enforcement Agents and School Safety agents the

         10  opportunity for promotion to police officer. Similar

         11  to the opportunity afforded to the Police Cadets.

         12                 Career incentive programs are also

         13  funded in the Executive Budget to retain highly

         14  talented personnel in patrol enforcement assignments

         15  and encourage diversity and desirable specialized

         16  enforcement units through the promotion of an

         17  additional 2,000 detective specialists.

         18                 With the Mayor's resources and

         19  support over the last five years, we have achieved

         20  impressive results. Crime has been cut in half

         21  during Mayor Giuliani's Administration. Even more

         22  astonishing is the fact that since 1993 murders have

         23  dropped by 67 percent and a number of shooting

         24  victims have been reduced by 66 percent. Robberies,

         25  too, are down nearly 60 percent in the period.
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          2                 Since 1993, the cumulative reduction

          3  in index crimes has totalled more than 950,000. That

          4  is 950,000 fewer citizens of the City who would have

          5  been victimized if crime had continued at the 1993

          6  rate.

          7                 In the current year the trend

          8  continues. Preliminary statistics indicate that

          9  total crime complaints are down 12 percent through

         10  the week ending May 9th. While the NYPD has achieved

         11  great success in the fight against crime, I am

         12  seeking your assistance to further our efforts in

         13  advancing the level of professionalism in the

         14  Department's rank by requesting a vote on the Police

         15  Discipline bill.

         16                 I also note that the Council's recent

         17  Blueprint For Reform of the NYPD did not include the

         18  Discipline bill, one mechanism to improve police

         19  accountability, which the Council could accomplish.

         20  Contrary to the repeated assertions of the Chair,

         21  the Administration did not request a meeting with

         22  the Council to discuss this bill. We met with

         23  Council staff at their request, speaking to address

         24  the Council's concerns about the bill. We

         25  acknowledged those concerns and redrafted the bill
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          2  accordingly, providing the Council an amended

          3  version. It is in the interest of the entire City

          4  for the Council to place this bill on the agenda at

          5  the earliest opportunity.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Could I comment

          7  on that again?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Why don't

          9  you wait until I am through.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: No, because it

         11  directly pertains to that.

         12                 I have had a number of hearings on

         13  that bill. I was prepared to vote on that bill --

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Three

         15  years.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Commissioner,

         17  you have to address matters to where they belong,

         18  and the agenda of this Committee with respect to

         19  that bill is controlled by the Speaker's Office.

         20                 Now, I have previously been prepared

         21  to vote, I am prepared to vote, but they take

         22  account of 50 other members and their views, and

         23  some of them have genuine concerns with respect to

         24  giving you, at this point, or the Police

         25  Commissioner, giving the Police Commissioner the
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          2  additional powers of that bill. So, I suggest that

          3  you take it up with the appropriate party that can

          4  turn the schedule on this bill.

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, I

          6  would think that as Chairman of the Public Safety

          7  Committee, you certainly would have dialogue with

          8  the appropriate parties and that you would be

          9  pushing to get this bill out.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And I have and I

         11  have repeated it, supported -- in fact, I don't know

         12  of anybody else who has done so.

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: But only

         14  this Committee can vote it out.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Yes. But as was

         16  evidenced by the meeting that was scheduled on

         17  December 16th, 1997, the matter can be pulled from

         18  the agenda by the office downstairs. So, I therefore

         19  suggest that if you want to take it up, take it up

         20  where it can be effective.

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, you

         22  know, that's like me saying that, you know, somebody

         23  else controls what I control. But, you know, the

         24  fact is this is the Committee that has the control

         25  of this bill.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  POLICE DEPARTMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is not the

          3  case. That is not the way in fact the City Council

          4  operates. Perhaps some day it will operate that way,

          5  but that is not the way it operates now.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Mr. Chairman,

          7  can we move on, please.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I am perfectly

          9  happy, but I think it is important that when a

         10  matter is addressed, responsibility be where it can

         11  effectively be taken care of.

         12                 We don't mean to give somebody a

         13  responsibility when the person has in fact done

         14  everything within his powers to address it.

         15                 You certainly want to be fair, do you

         16  not, Commissioner?

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I want to

         18  be fair, and I want the group --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well, that being

         20  the case, I told you --

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: -- That is

         22  responsible for this bill to vote it out.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. But in

         24  order to get it on the agenda, something else has to

         25  happen.
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          2                 Now, do you want to move on with your

          3  testimony?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure, I

          5  will be happy to.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: And again

          8  urge that this come to a vote.

          9                 I also urge the Council to

         10  immediately pass the amended Gunlock bill, Intro.

         11  No. 320-A, which has languished in the Council for

         12  six months and would significantly strengthen the

         13  Council's enactment of "Christopher's Law."

         14                 I would also like to make a general

         15  comment about the Blueprint for Reform, which was

         16  issued without input from the NYPD itself.

         17                 The plan essentially recycles ideas

         18  which have been discussed before, except for

         19  proposing in my view the disastrous new idea of

         20  rolling back the educational requirement for

         21  in-coming police recruits.

         22                 In a document supposedly aimed at

         23  improving our Department, it is unthinkable that

         24  removing the educational requirement should be

         25  suggested.
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          2                 The entrants requirements were

          3  upgraded precisely because recruits with college or

          4  military experience were found to perform better as

          5  police officers.

          6                 Finally, I must also comment on

          7  published misrepresentations regarding the

          8  Department's response to the report issued by the

          9  Mayor's Task Force on Police Community Relations.

         10                 Various publications stated the

         11  report was ignored and discarded. This is untrue.

         12  The Task Force made 91 recommendations. Sixteen of

         13  those recommendations were not within the purview of

         14  the Police Department. Of the remaining 75

         15  recommendations, 65 or 87 percent have been

         16  implemented or partially implemented by the Police

         17  Department and five or seven percent are in

         18  development or under consideration.

         19                 I have attached to my statement a

         20  copy of a matrix outlining each recommendation and

         21  its status.

         22                 While we face many challenges in

         23  Fiscal Year 2000, both fiscal and operational, I

         24  remain committed to continue to use the resources

         25  entrusted to this Department in the most effective
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          2  way possible.

          3                 I seek your support in enhancing our

          4  operational efforts further.

          5                 I will be happy to answer questions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you.

          7                 With respect to the proposed

          8  amendments on the Gunlock legislation, the substance

          9  of these amendments were discussed at the time we

         10  passed the Gunlock law, which I proposed and which

         11  became law a year ago. At that time it was decided

         12  by all concerned that there were serious legal

         13  questions with respect to the capacity, the

         14  jurisdiction, the power of the City Council, City

         15  government, to implement those matters.

         16                 We now have a legal opinion with

         17  respect to this and I propose that we take this up

         18  at one of the two meetings I had scheduled in June.

         19  In fact, when we had the capital budget hearing last

         20  Friday, I specifically laid out the agenda for June

         21  saying that we would take up E 9-1-1 on June 16th

         22  and that bill and one with respect to DWI on June

         23  30th, and I assumed that that was okay, as five days

         24  passed and I had no comments to the contrary, I know

         25  you have instant communication.
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          2                 Yesterday afternoon I was told that

          3  you have a meeting, or some other engagement, some

          4  engagement on June 16th, so it is still my desire to

          5  take up those matters in June, but first and

          6  foremost the E 9-1-1, as to which we have just

          7  gotten some correspondence, which I appreciate, from

          8  you and the Police Department today. So, it is my

          9  plan to take up the Gunlocks in June, provided we

         10  also take up the E 9-1-1 in June.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I would

         12  look forward to the E 9-1-1 hearing. As my office

         13  has advised you, I have a scheduling conflict on the

         14  16th, but I certainly would look forward to another

         15  time in June addressing that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

         17                 So I trust that we will be able to

         18  set up a second meeting. If not, we have June 30th

         19  as one sure meeting date for that. I trust that

         20  those will be taken up in the near future.

         21                 And let me say also, I would welcome

         22  -- the last wasn't addressed to me, it referred to

         23  published misrepresentations, I guess that is the

         24  press.

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's
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          2  correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right, I realize

          4  that. But I would appreciate some detailed

          5  presentation with respect to what you have in your

          6  appendix. You know, when it says partially

          7  implemented, that can mean a whole range of things.

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We would

          9  be more than pleased to have you or your staff sit

         10  down and go over the details of each and every item

         11  on the matrix.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay. That is

         13  something I sought to do back on, if you remember

         14  correctly when you were here on February 16th, and I

         15  am still looking forward to finally getting the

         16  staff to do that.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We are

         18  there. All the staff has to do is come over.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I know. But it

         20  is not so easy to get them to do it here.

         21                 I think the most important budgetary

         22  issue is the proposed acceleration of the 1,589

         23  officers from Fiscal Year 2001 to Fiscal Year 2000.

         24  We addressed this at the time of the preliminary

         25  budget. You saw the Council as an institution did
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          2  not accept this, although I personally have

          3  supported it. The cost of the proposed acceleration

          4  is $32 million for the first year, Fiscal Year 2000.

          5                 I sent you a letter on January 27th

          6  and had a press conference on February 2nd

          7  requesting back-up material and analysis that led to

          8  the Department's determination that 1,589 new

          9  officers should be budgeted by January 2000. I did

         10  this because there is a need for a strategic plan to

         11  accompany a budget proposal for the additional 1,589

         12  officers. Not getting a response, we sent a letter

         13  on April 29th, requesting information on the

         14  deployment of the new officers, specifically a

         15  listing of the command assignments of the officers

         16  who graduated from the academy in February and April

         17  of this year, and the headcount of those commands

         18  just prior to and just after their post academy

         19  deployment. The letter asked for the same data on a

         20  projected basis for the academy class schedule to

         21  begin on July 1st, 1999, and the accelerated class

         22  that you propose to begin on January 1st, 2000.

         23                 Despite many attempts by the Council

         24  staff to date, we haven't gotten any response.  Why

         25  have we not yet gotten a response to the inquiry
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          2  that I first addressed on January 27th, followed up

          3  by the April 29th letter?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Okay,

          5  well, we never received that letter and counsel has

          6  just advised me that he has doublechecked, and that

          7  was a letter that was never received.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It was literally

          9  hand-delivered at the meeting that we had.

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, I

         11  don't know to who. In answer to your question, we

         12  have an answer to your strategic plan.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And Mark Young,

         14  who I have always found to be a very reliable

         15  person, says he personally hand-delivered the letter

         16  to Mr. Grasso, George Grasso.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well,

         18  perhaps I will have Commissioner Grasso answer,

         19  since he is the party who allegedly received it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We have refaxed

         21  it. There is about five different times where we

         22  have sought this information.

         23                 And let me say, I think the important

         24  point is, you, the Department, you know, is

         25  proposing a major initiative, it was not originally
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          2  accepted, it is important, it is important to

          3  present a case in a systematic way.

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I am

          5  prepared to do that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

          7                 Do you have the data that we --

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, please.

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The

         11  accelerated hiring will allow the Department to

         12  sustain efforts against narcotics and to ensure that

         13  the housing, transit and precincts are at their

         14  highest staffing levels.

         15                 Average uniformed staffing in the

         16  transit division would exceed 3,000 in Calendar Year

         17  2000, the highest annual average since the merger.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Would exceed how

         19  much?

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR:

         21  Three-thousand.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Average -- what

         23  did you just say?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Average

         25  uniformed staffing in the Transit Division --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Would

          4  exceed 3,000 in Calendar Year 2000. The highest

          5  annual average since the merger.

          6                 Average uniformed staffing in the

          7  Housing Bureau would reach 2,000 in Calendar Year

          8  2000, the highest since 1996.

          9                 Average uniformed staffing in the

         10  precincts would reach 18,100 in calendar year 2000,

         11  the highest annual average in the last quarter

         12  century.

         13                 In addition to maintaining these

         14  highly visible full service policing units, the

         15  Department will maintain its crime reduction efforts

         16  by restoring local investigators to precinct

         17  detective squads where there would be an average of

         18  1,735. Fugitive Enforcement Division, where there

         19  would be an average of 348.  Internal Affairs, where

         20  there would be an average of 562. The Intel

         21  Division, where there would be an average of 321.

         22  The Narcotic Division, where there would be an

         23  average of 2,800, and undercover operations where

         24  there would be an average of 600 and organized crime

         25  investigations where there would be an average of
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          2  680.

          3                 The Strategic Plan is consistent with

          4  the assurance the Department made to the federal

          5  government to maintain uniform and civilian

          6  headcount as a central component to receive grant

          7  monies, $222 million through the Year 2000.

          8                 The Department has added 3,500

          9  officers and the timely replacement of attrition

         10  maintains this gain.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Is that the

         12  Strategic Plan?

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         14  the personnel component of the plan.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well,

         16  incidently, we are joined by Council Member Phil

         17  Reed, a member of the Committee.

         18                 What we requested, in addition to

         19  what you have gone through, is the specific

         20  deployments that have taken place earlier this year

         21  that are proposed to take place with the class

         22  schedule to begin on July 1st, with the proposed

         23  accelerated class on January 1st in each precinct,

         24  so that people all over the City and their Council

         25  members will be able to see what has in fact
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          2  happened to the graduates of the classes this year.

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The prior

          4  classes we have no problem in providing you with

          5  them --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I know, it is

          7  basic data, that is the reason why I would have

          8  expected --

          9                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Let me

         10  finish.

         11                 The prior class, we have no problem

         12  in providing that data. I can't tell you where we

         13  are going to deploy the 2000 class because crime

         14  conditions can change significantly by then.

         15                 What I can tell you is that our

         16  commitment is to deploy the majority of those

         17  resources to the precincts, as we have to the

         18  previous class, but I can't tell you I am going to

         19  deploy ten officers to the 105 and 40 to the 4-6,

         20  because I don't know what crime conditions are going

         21  to be at that time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But would it not

         23  make sense to give a projection as of a current date

         24  based on approximate conditions recognizing that,

         25  you know, there are going to be changes but that in
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          2  fact this would allow certain concerns to be taken

          3  into account that have been repeatedly expressed.

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I think it

          5  would be a -- other than looking at attrition, I

          6  think projecting numbers in specific precincts is

          7  not effective crime, reduction of crime control, it

          8  is projecting something that we don't know and will

          9  not know until the conditions exist.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: You know,

         11  different groupings have an interest in what goes on

         12  with respect to deployment of police officers.

         13  Community groups have expressed concerns with

         14  respect to community policing and with respect to

         15  conditions in the area with respect to police

         16  response time. Matters which I think they hope and

         17  reasonably hope will somehow be better accommodated

         18  by the Police Department in the proximate future.

         19  So, it seems to me that it would make sense to try

         20  to explain how your proposed acceleration of 1,589

         21  officers would seek to address those concerns, quite

         22  apart from what you emphasized a moment ago driving

         23  down crime statistics, crime control, other matters

         24  have been expressed which we as a legislative body

         25  would like to see taken into account.
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well,

          3  certainly community groups have a legitimate

          4  interest in additional police and we will try to

          5  address that with each community group. But in the

          6  final analysis, what we have to be concerned with is

          7  balancing community policing with special units and

          8  crime reduction, and that is something we have been

          9  very successful at, which is why we are the safest

         10  large city in America, and to make a commitment at

         11  this point to a --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We are not

         13  asking for a commitment, I said projection.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: But a

         15  projection is a commitment. If you tell a community

         16  group in the 105 that they are getting 40 police

         17  officers, from their viewpoint that is a commitment,

         18  that is not a projection.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: People are

         20  smarter than that. People are smarter than that.

         21  People will understand.

         22                 What people would like to see is that

         23  there be a strategic plan that is intended and

         24  honestly seeks to address their concerns beyond one

         25  page read off at a meeting.
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We have

          3  books of strategic plans and strategies for every

          4  single crime. However, what you are asking for is a

          5  commitment for each precinct in the future and we

          6  can't give you that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It is not. That

          8  is a red herring. In no sense am I asking for that.

          9  What it seeks to do is honestly address a variety of

         10  individuals' concerns with respect to police as a

         11  means of basically saying if we accelerate the

         12  hiring, this is what can be accomplished. If we

         13  don't do that, it seems to me there is a substantial

         14  risk that what happened in March, which was not to

         15  accept the proposal, recurs.

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well,

         17  there is certainly always a risk.

         18                 As I told you, the Commitment of this

         19  Department is that we are going to deploy the next

         20  class, as we did the last class, to precincts, to

         21  see that precincts are staffed as they are now at

         22  higher levels than they had been before.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But what we

         24  would like to do is see what will be accomplished

         25  with that. How will it in fact reduce police
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          2  response time? How will it address concerns that

          3  obviously exist these days with respect to police

          4  community relations, respect for individuals, how it

          5  will exist -- address concerns with respect to local

          6  problems, other than major index crimes, hopefully

          7  in terms of specific goals that are quantifiable and

          8  that give one confidence that if in fact we do that

          9  acceleration, we will in fact achieve the

         10  specifically quantifiable goals.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, I am

         12  not sure that the specifically quantifiable goals

         13  that you relate are the specifically quantifiable

         14  goals, they vary from community to community.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That's right,

         16  and you might not do it on a community-to-community

         17  bassi.

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We do.

         19  That is what the Precinct Community Council does.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is what I

         21  would seek to see, and what I still would seek to

         22  see, and what I still say is --

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I don't

         24  know what it is you want to see, quite honestly.

         25  Maybe you could quantify it for me more
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          2  specifically.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: What we would

          4  like to do is see the strategic plan that you

          5  propose in each precinct using the 1,589 additional

          6  officers and those that are existing.

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We will be

          8  happy to provide you with where the police officers

          9  have gone. We will be happy to provide you with the

         10  precinct plan for each precinct. But as far as

         11  projecting additional personnel for the next class,

         12  we are not going to do that because it would be a

         13  waste of time and energy because conditions change

         14  daily.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. But I

         16  submit to you it would not be a waste of time.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Okay, we

         18  disagree on that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: We can disagree.

         20  But it seems to me that one of the things that

         21  commissioners come to meetings for is to learn, and

         22  therefore, I submit, with respect, that the chances

         23  of approving the acceleration would be enhanced if

         24  we did this, and that it in fact makes sense to try

         25  to address the concerns that residents have with
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          2  respect to community problems on a

          3  community-by-community basis.

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Which we

          5  do every day through our Precinct Community Council

          6  and our Precinct Commanders.

          7                 Now, the issue here is a

          8  philosophical difference.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It is not. It is

         10  a very specific, practical difference.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No, it's

         12  not. A philosophical difference on --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It is not.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: -- How we

         15  should run the Police Department. Well, at the

         16  moment I am running the Police Department, so that

         17  is a view that I don't agree with you on, as far as

         18  taking a great deal of time to go over each precinct

         19  plan.

         20                 If you want to send your staff to sit

         21  with my staff and talk about each precinct, I will

         22  be happy to do that, and we meet with community

         23  groups every single day.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: You know,

         25  frankly, there is a seat of the pants way in which
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          2  decisions are made in this City by government --

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I could

          4  not disagree with you more, Mr. Leffler. We have a

          5  very systematic analysis of every single --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Unless I see

          7  something in writing, in detail --

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We have a

          9  systematic analysis of every single precinct and I

         10  will tell you that when it comes to precincts, I

         11  think we have more expertise on this side of the

         12  table than that side.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well, I would

         14  certainly hope so. That is why you are paid to do

         15  this.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Mr. Chairman,

         17  can we please move on.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Mr. Golden, I

         19  think this is an important point that relates --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: You can't

         21  micromanage the Police Department. It was answered

         22  four ways from Sunday, can we please move on?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Mr. Golden, you

         24  are out of order, with all respect. And I say this

         25  with all respect, these points are not micromanaging
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          2  the Police -- if you think so, fine, you can express

          3  your point of view.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I submit to you

          6  with conviction, this is not micromanaging the

          7  Department, it is what should be done. If you don't

          8  want to do it, fine, but I don't think that is in

          9  the best interest of the public at large.

         10                 Now, let me ask you this, to move on:

         11  Your proposal is to accelerate 1,589 police

         12  officers. The Council, as an institution, responding

         13  with nothing, with a proposal for increased

         14  civilianization, which I will get to shortly. Have

         15  you considered the possibility of accelerating 300

         16  officers, 800 officers, 1,000 officers?

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No,

         18  because I think there are a number of issues here.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Can you explain

         20  why not?

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: First,

         22  because it is our view, in order to continue crime

         23  reduction and community policing, in order to have

         24  the balance that I believe is necessary of both

         25  community policing and crime reduction, that we need
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          2  the 1,589 officers.

          3                 Also, we are now in a very intensive

          4  recruiting campaign, which we need to take advantage

          5  of at the conclusion of the campaign, not a year

          6  later when the campaign is no longer funded.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Now, another

          8  aspect of the proposal is to make a one time

          9  acceleration, but not to make an acceleration of a

         10  subsequent academy's class scheduled to enter on

         11  July 1st, 2001. So that over the entire 18-month

         12  period there would be steady attrition and a going

         13  down of the force so that at the end of that period

         14  it would be somewhere in the 39,000 plus number.

         15                 Why have you proposed only

         16  accelerating a single class, you know, rather than

         17  the second class as well?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Because an

         19  analysis of the attrition during that next year

         20  would not have a significant impact on the precincts

         21  and the commitment was to keep high levels in the

         22  precincts.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And what about

         24  the other initiatives that you have referred to?

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The other
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          2  initiatives would continue, but some of them will

          3  have lesser requirements at that point.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: They will have

          5  lesser requirements in the future.

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Some of

          7  them, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I see.

          9                 And which won't? Will you set that

         10  forth to us in writing so we can see?

         11                 I mean, it seems somewhat anomalous

         12  to say that 1,600 police officers are needed and

         13  then not to fill the attrition for 18 months.

         14                 Okay, at the Preliminary Budget

         15  Hearing that we had in March, you said that -- let's

         16  see, I said that Council Members and the public want

         17  more of a balance between targeted enforcement

         18  strategies that this Administration has emphasized

         19  and precinct-based community policing, and I think

         20  you agreed that there had to be a balance, the

         21  balance is continually being recalibrated; I take it

         22  what you think this 1,589 acceleration would achieve

         23  is that it would better enable you to strike a

         24  balance between the two?

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is
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          2  correct. And in fact, the last class took a great

          3  stride forward in doing that, because the vast

          4  majority of those resources went to precincts.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: The last class.

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The last

          7  class, and we expect the next class to do the same.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I will just ask

          9  you about civilianization and then I will turn it

         10  over to my colleague.

         11                 One of the, to me, striking things

         12  about the staffing of the Department, is that if you

         13  factor out Traffic Enforcement Agents, as our staff

         14  did in a report released earlier this year, if you

         15  factor out Traffic Enforcement Agents, the numbers

         16  of civilians as of the end of 1998 were actually

         17  just about the same, actually lower than the numbers

         18  of civilians on the force in 1989. You have taken on

         19  650 new civilians in this Cops Now --

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Cops More.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Yes, Cops More

         22  '98; have the 650 positions already been taken on

         23  that are scheduled to be taken on in 1999?

         24                 Five-hundred civilians to replace

         25  police officers in administration and 150 traffic
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          2  control agents?

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, it is

          4  a total of 650.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It is well

          7  underway. 266 have been hired, 234 are expected to

          8  be hired by June 30th.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: All right. Now,

         10  on December 10th, when we had our hearing on the

         11  Mayor's Management Report, you said that there were

         12  900 civilianizable positions in the Department.

         13  Subsequently, the City Comptroller did an audit

         14  saying that there were 1,200 more positions that

         15  could be civilianized, which you critiqued when I

         16  sited that at the March hearing.

         17                 We asked you, I specifically asked

         18  you at the December 10th meeting, at the March

         19  hearing on the Preliminary Budget, to provide us

         20  with a listing of civilianizable positions. We still

         21  have not gotten that; is that not correct? Do you

         22  have a list today of the positions in the Department

         23  that can be civilianized?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We do have

         25  a list, yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Could you give

          3  me the list?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We would

          5  be happy to.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Before we leave.

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I don't

          8  have it with me.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Oh, you don't

         10  have it, but you will give it to us?

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         12  Chief Markman will be happy to provide it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

         14                 Mr. Markman is here. How many police

         15  are performing non-police functions now?

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: About 900.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: About 900, okay.

         18  If the number is 900, then why do we not have a more

         19  ambitious plan in this year's proposed budget to

         20  civilianize most of those 900 civilianizable

         21  positions?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We have a

         23  plan that we are able to hire and then as we hire

         24  those, we will aggressively look for more cops, more

         25  money for additional civilians.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr. Chairman,

          3  could you ask him of those 900 whether any of them

          4  are on limited duty due to some disability?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, a

          7  number of them may be on disability or limited duty,

          8  restricted duty.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Instead of

         10  staying home they do perform the services in the

         11  precincts?

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. But most

         14  of the 900 are civilianizable positions.

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         16  correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

         18                 The Cops More '98 provide for the

         19  hiring in '99, so it seems to me that your approach

         20  of saying why don't we hire these people and then we

         21  will look for additional sources of money, will

         22  leave us without any assurance when we get into the

         23  second half of this year, of being able to make

         24  further inroads with respect to the 900

         25  civilianizable positions that, you know, we would
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          2  like to deal with.

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, I

          4  certainly have no problem with additional

          5  civilianization of the 900 positions.

          6                 As you know --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Why don't we

          8  have a specific budgetary, you know, to take account

          9  of it? In fact, isn't it anomalous to request 1,589

         10  more police officers in the fiscal year, at a time

         11  when we can do it for less with respect to at least

         12  the 900 civilianizable positions or those that are

         13  not on restricted duty, most of those 900.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The 500 is

         15  part of the 900.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It is part of

         17  the 900.

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         19  correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: So that after

         21  the 500 are hired, there will be 400 remaining, is

         22  that right?

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         24  correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And you are
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          2  giving us a list today of those 400?

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

          5                 Again, what plan exists for

          6  civilianizing those 400 positions in the next fiscal

          7  year?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: There is

          9  nothing in the budget, but certainly if the funding

         10  was there we could do it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But that was the

         12  point. The Council proposed, as it has for many,

         13  many years, civilianizing those additional

         14  positions, but instead you have gone for a strategy

         15  of taking on 1,589.

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well,

         17  again, remember, some of those positions are

         18  restricted duty cops.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Correct, but we

         20  are asking for the specifics. Apparently many of

         21  them are not.

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We will

         23  provide you with the specifics and we will be happy

         24  to discuss it with you further.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Again, you know,
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          2  we requested this in December, we requested this in

          3  March, to simply say now we will provide you with

          4  it, you know, just doesn't strike me as a sort of

          5  forthcoming response that we can use to deal with

          6  this.

          7                 Other members of the Committee have

          8  questions. Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 I would like to focus on School

         12  Safety Officers, I am sure the rest of the Committee

         13  will talk about all of that other stuff.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I have

         16  gotten feedback from a lot of my schools, teachers,

         17  principals, as to what is going on. Now, I notice

         18  in, I guess the capital budget statement, it says we

         19  have 3,396 School Safety Officers, is this the same

         20  number that came into the system when NYPD assumed

         21  administrative control? Or has this gone down? Was

         22  there some kind of criteria set up which made

         23  account change?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I will ask

         25  Chief Lawrence, who is Chief of School Safety, to
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          2  address that.

          3                 Chief.

          4                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: Chief James Lawrence,

          5  Commanding Officer of School Safety Division.

          6                 Since the merger we have had an

          7  attrition of approximately 177 School Safety Agents.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: That is

          9  not very much.

         10                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: No.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Was there

         12  a system, was there a formula for reviewing the

         13  people that had the position before you incorporated

         14  them into NYPD, or did they just?

         15                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: No, they were just

         16  transferred, we were prohibited from performing an

         17  investigation on them prior to the transfer. We had

         18  to accept them as they were.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And that

         20  is the way it will remain? There is no --

         21                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: Yes, we accept it.

         22  But naturally, if there are allegations made against

         23  School Safety Agents, they are investigated just as

         24  any other member of the Police Department are.

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Excuse me.
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          2  They will now be subject to the same disciplinary

          3  and conduct standards as other NYPD employees, which

          4  are different than they were in the Board of

          5  Education.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

          7                 But something would have to happen.

          8                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: There was

         10  suggested that a task force be set up between the

         11  Board of Education, I think it was Board of

         12  Education and the Police Department; has this been

         13  implemented?

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It is a

         15  joint committee, it has not yet been established.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And the

         17  idea of this was to accomplish what?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Basically

         19  the idea of it was to be the oversight committee for

         20  the memorandum of understanding, if there were

         21  disagreements or different interpretations of the

         22  memorandum of understanding, the oversight committee

         23  would resolve those.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I see here

         25  that 86 police officers will be promoted to the rank
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          2  of sergeant to allow for the assignment of

          3  additional uniformed supervisors for the School

          4  Safety. Now these are police officers.

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right. But

          6  they are not police officers in the school as such,

          7  what they are is they are the precinct school safety

          8  coordinator. They are the individuals who will

          9  actually be doing the overall supervision of the

         10  School Safety Officers in that precinct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         12                 Some of the complaints that I have

         13  heard are that schools that previously had school

         14  safety officers, and I think this is why the

         15  questions are coming to me, is that they now do not,

         16  and so the question they are asking me is where are

         17  they, what happened?

         18                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: You know, the

         19  transfer occurred to the Police Department December

         20  20th. In September, the attrition since September in

         21  the School Safety Division is about 241 School

         22  Safety Officers, so when you take the total number,

         23  you know, it shows why there are some vacancies. And

         24  what we have done in the division, to try to

         25  accommodate as many schools as possible, most of the
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          2  public schools are only manned by one agent, when an

          3  agent is absent we backfill that agent and we have

          4  to go to where we have agents, usually the high

          5  schools, the high schools have usually ten to 15 or

          6  sometimes 20 agents aside. One thing that I have

          7  also done, since taking over the Division, is I have

          8  redeployed some of the agents. They had a nighttime

          9  task force that they had responding to alarms, there

         10  was no need for that, because we have police

         11  patrolling the City that can respond to alarms, so

         12  they have been redeployed to backfill.

         13                 But there are shortages. We try to

         14  accommodate as many schools as possible, but to the

         15  detriment usually of the high schools where it is

         16  more critical to have School Safety Officers.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Now, will

         18  you be hiring more School Safety Officers? And if

         19  so, will there now be a different set of criteria

         20  than there were when they were hired before by the

         21  Board of Education?

         22                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: Yes. Our Personnel

         23  Bureau did a job analysis and they set a new

         24  criteria for School Safety Officers, the standard

         25  for -- you know, they can't give them a test because
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          2  it is a non-competitive position, but they will have

          3  a physical requirement, examination, they will have

          4  pass the psyche, drug testing.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Which was

          6  not the case before.

          7                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: Which was not the

          8  case before.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         10                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: Presently they have

         11  interviewed candidates for hiring in July and the

         12  candidates that they interviewed were taken from a

         13  traffic agent list, an existing civil service list.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I also see

         15  that in your statement, Commissioner, you said that

         16  the Department of Citywide Administrative Services

         17  would enable TEAs and School Safety Agents, so they

         18  would go into a type of cadet program which --

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It is very

         20  similar. Basically, there are I believe in school

         21  safety and traffic enforcement there are probably

         22  over 700 or 800 qualified agents who could become

         23  police officers so they will get credit for their

         24  time as TEAs or School Safety Agents and then come

         25  in under a promotional exam, which basically means
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          2  if they pass their police officers.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. Now,

          4  how would that effect the requirement of the NYPD

          5  that you have to have a certain amount of college

          6  credits? Would that still apply to them?

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you,

         11  Council Member Provenzano.

         12                 Councilman Martin Golden.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chair.

         15                 Good afternoon, Commissioner,

         16  gentlemen, ladies. On the same note, is there an SOP

         17  created or a time line created for that promotion

         18  from School Safety and the Traffic Enforcement

         19  Agent.

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes,

         21  actually the next higher. They will be able to come

         22  in under the next test, yes. So, this will move us

         23  along very quickly.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And the next

         25  test date is?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: October

          3  25th, and which means they could come into the

          4  January class.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Excellent.

          6                 The recruitment program that you

          7  placed, that you have in place is excellent. I mean,

          8  you have done an awful lot of work in that area. Is

          9  there a goal -- I am sure there is, can we be privy

         10  to that goal as to anticipated hire?

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We don't

         12  have a numerical.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Okay.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: What we do

         15  have is, you know, certainly a goal of significant

         16  increases in the diversity within the Department,

         17  and we believe that that is going to occur.

         18                 We saw in the last class there were

         19  70 percent City residents, and we expect as City

         20  residents increase in our class, that diversity will

         21  increase as well.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: You always

         23  have to transfer, going to the funds now that are

         24  being used for the Board of Education, will we

         25  always have to transfer those funds from the Board
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          2  of Ed over to the NYPD or is that going to be

          3  straightened out at some point?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It

          5  happened in the current year's budget, did it not?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GRASSO: Yes,

          7  Councilman, they have literally been transferred in

          8  the current year's budget. So in the Fiscal Year

          9  2000 you are seeing a very significant increase in

         10  our budget which is attributable to that transfer.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you.

         12                 The 6-8, 6-2, Brooklyn South, all the

         13  precincts are very happy to see the new manpower

         14  that has come into it, I am sure, like my

         15  colleagues, all over the City of New York, and that

         16  is why we are trying to expedite these classes to

         17  get more police officers into the precinct. I also

         18  did recognize at the 6-8 Precinct the other night at

         19  the 6-8 Precinct Community Council they had 12 new

         20  police cadet trainees, it was well orchestrated,

         21  well done and you should be proud of that.

         22                 The promotion to detective

         23  specialist, the incentive to promotion or the career

         24  training.

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I think this

          3  is also a fantastic idea. Is there going to be --

          4  could you give us the impetus for this, and is there

          5  additional hires for this as well? Are there going

          6  to be additional promotions as well as these 2,000

          7  in the future?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, the

          9  2,000 is designed to do two things; one, to increase

         10  the number of minorities in special units, and also

         11  to encourage good patrol officers to stay in patrol.

         12  There are areas in the precincts, for instance,

         13  domestic violence officers, youth officers, who

         14  really have no incentive to stay in the precincts

         15  and many of them are good officers. There are also

         16  good patrol officers who would like to stay in

         17  patrol, but there is no career path for them and

         18  this will give us the ability for each precinct

         19  commander to identify those police officers who are

         20  doing an excellent job, are doing a specialty and

         21  give them this promotion.

         22                 The answer to are there going to be

         23  more? I hope so.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: But we have

         25  none slated, none planned?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            54

          1  POLICE DEPARTMENT

          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right now

          3  it is 2000.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: The --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Could I just ask

          6  a question?

          7                 Just how does it help retain these

          8  good officers, say, in domestic violence or in youth

          9  if they are made detective specialists?

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Because

         11  currently they have no promotional opportunity

         12  there.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But say they are

         14  promoted, how does that retain them as continuing

         15  youth officers and domestic violence --

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Because we

         17  will give them those promotions in place.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: In place, so

         19  that they are detectives but they continue to do --

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Exactly

         21  right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I see. Okay,

         23  thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: That was long

         25  overdue, and you should be credited for that.
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          2                 I, as a retired police officer, knew

          3  how you could stagnate. With this many police

          4  officers now it is almost unmanageable not to have

          5  some type of career path for these officers, so you

          6  should definitely be credited for that. And I hope

          7  there are more down the road.

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: So do I.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: For our sake

         10  and yours.

         11                 Moving on to the PSAC 2 system. I

         12  know we were in the papers a few weeks back about

         13  Bell Atlantic, there was a little problem, we don't

         14  know whose fault it was, and if we could have

         15  something on that, as well as the hot site, the new

         16  PSA2, where is that? And is it in the near future?

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Okay, the

         18  problem with the delay in getting a ring when

         19  dialing 9-1-1 was sporadic and very limited

         20  throughout the City. It had no affect, that we are

         21  aware of, on any emergencies.

         22                 However, it is a problem, and it is

         23  one that Bell Atlantic has put a great deal of

         24  resources to deal with. I will tell you it does not

         25  exist now, but they have still not been able to
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          2  actually determine the cause of it.

          3                 They are working with their software

          4  vendors to work it out and we are working with them

          5  as well, but in a system as big as Bell Atlantic,

          6  anomalies happen, this was one, they did a lot of

          7  switching around of their lines so that the problem

          8  abated, but they are still working on figuring out

          9  what it was.

         10                 As far as PSAC 2 is concerned, we

         11  have identified a PSAC 2 site. The building, the

         12  Design and Construction Department has put a plan

         13  together. The Mayor has included it in his proposed

         14  budgets, and so we expect from the day the contract

         15  is issued, which we hope is relatively soon, because

         16  we do have it on the fast track, it will be two

         17  years until it is up and running.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you.

         19                 Moving over to the DWI, the new

         20  procedure, how is that fit into the budget? And what

         21  are the results of that?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We have

         23  seized over 400 cars, we have made over 1,100

         24  arrests. DWI deaths are down about 22 percent, DWI

         25  accidents are down about 27 percent, DWI arrests are
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          2  down 14 percent because people are a lot more

          3  cognizant about driving drunk now, and of course I

          4  know we are all aware that the Supreme Court

          5  affirmed the law yesterday in a very detailed

          6  decision, saying that it was in fact constitutional

          7  and we expect that this is a program that will be

          8  replicated by Police Departments around the country

          9  and the world.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: State Supreme

         11  Court.

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         13  what I said.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: No, you said

         15  Supreme Court.

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Okay. New

         17  York State Supreme Court, yes, absolutely.

         18                 Mr. Golden.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: The DWI, how

         20  is that fitting? Is that budgeted for? Have we got

         21  enough dollars for that?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: There is a

         23  budget item here, I think it is about $600,000 for

         24  Staten Island and Queens for additional tow pound

         25  facilities.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            58

          1  POLICE DEPARTMENT

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And the last

          3  question. The present stats with the new police

          4  officers; how are our stats going? And with the

          5  difficulty that we have had the past months, have

          6  crime --

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Crime is

          8  down about 12 percent.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And it is

         10  continuing in that direction?

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It is

         12  continuing in that direction.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you very

         14  much, Commissioner. Great job. Thank you.

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: On the School

         17  Safety, there are two new object codes on page 73E

         18  of the Expense Budget, 003 for School Safety for the

         19  current year and 0030 with respect to the OTPS.

         20                 We are also joined by Council Members

         21  Ronnie Eldridge and Angel Rodriguez.

         22                 Councilman Victor Robles.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chairman.

         25                 Let me begin, because I don't want my
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          2  Republican colleague to be the only one thanking

          3  you. I want you to know, I was at a meeting where,

          4  at a community board meeting where Deputy Inspector

          5  Waltman, Commanding Officer of the 83rd Precinct,

          6  showed us this new video and I must commend you for

          7  that video because for a person who lives and was

          8  raised there, it is always good to see how young

          9  people became police officers from the community --

         10  and where is Chief Dunn, he was in PSA 3, it was

         11  good to see this young Hispanic police officer,

         12  whose mother and I are both Eucharist Ministers in

         13  the same church and I watched him grow in that

         14  church. So, I want you to know I want to thank you

         15  because at least that video that I saw, I could

         16  identify to the community and I want you to know

         17  that.

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Commissioner,

         20  on the 3,400 School Safety employees, I see you said

         21  here that that reflects the transfer into the NYPD.

         22  Now, that may be the operation and the bodies, but

         23  the appropriation of funds is still in the Board of

         24  Education?

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No, it has
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          2  been transferred into our budget.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: So now you

          4  have full control of the School Safety Division?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We have

          6  full control of the School Safety Division, of

          7  course subject to the MOU at the Board of Ed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Other than

          9  that Committee, though?

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I see.

         12                 So, actually now they are all New

         13  York City Police Department personnel.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: You no longer

         16  need to go to the Board of Education to transfer

         17  funds, now you will see that directly in your

         18  budget?

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         20  correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is what I

         22  was referring to just a moment ago.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Oh, I am

         24  sorry. I wasn't paying attention then I guess.

         25                 Commissioner, the 150 additional
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          2  school crossing guards that you said will be

          3  assigned to heavily traffic and dangerous locations,

          4  can you provide this Committee of where these 150

          5  are going to, and the location so that we have an

          6  idea of what that means?

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, the

          8  Chief of Patrol is performing that analysis right

          9  now, as soon as it is done we will be happy to give

         10  you a copy.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And can you do

         12  one more thing? Can you give us also by precincts

         13  what the headcount should be of locations where

         14  requests have been approved for school crossing

         15  guards and perhaps they don't have the means to fill

         16  them. So, I commend you again for the 150, but my

         17  dilemma is that I remember that in those precincts

         18  within North Brooklyn, I have school districts and

         19  precincts where there is a lot of locations that

         20  should be covered by a school crossing guard and

         21  either/or, either we have to use a police officer

         22  when they are available or there is no school

         23  crossing guard. So, just to get an idea, would you

         24  provide that too?

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure, I
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          2  would be happy to.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And the last

          4  is this recruitment, the 10 million that you

          5  referred to the Mayor and the City Council. Also, do

          6  you have a list or are you aware of where in the

          7  publications in terms of the media, those

          8  advertisements are going to, and there is no need to

          9  hear it now but if you have a list of where --

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We do have

         11  a list and just to assure you that the print ads

         12  will be in every conceivable outlet - you know, El

         13  Diaro, La Puenta, Amsterdam News, right down the

         14  line.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Right.

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: In fact,

         17  we had a meeting yesterday with representatives of

         18  all of those publications to tell them what we were

         19  doing and how we were doing it and one of the keys

         20  here is the ads will be in both English and Spanish.

         21  They will be disseminated through both the general

         22  media newspapers and local newspapers, they will be

         23  on subways, buses, billboards, right down the line.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: The other area

         25  is, as you said that as you move forward you talk
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          2  about the productions --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Can I just ask,

          4  on the matter of improvement, before we move on,

          5  could I ask something?

          6                 Could you provide us with all of the

          7  items that are used in your recruitment campaign?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, if

          9  you would like. Commissioner Jiminez is perpared to

         10  give you some detailed response on it right now.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well, I think we

         12  should just get a copy of it so we can see it.

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Including an

         15  itemized list of how all $10 million is going to be

         16  spent. Personally I think it would have been good to

         17  have gotten that before we approved it, but I think

         18  it would be good to see now --

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         20  There is a detailed media plan, distribution

         21  purchase plan, which lays out exactly how much is

         22  going to be spent on television, how much on print,

         23  how much on billboards, how much on other kinds of

         24  things.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And you are
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          2  doing polling as well as part of this; is that

          3  correct?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

          5  correct. We are doing polling to see what customer

          6  quote, that is the way they talk about it in the

          7  business, customer satisfaction with the ads to see

          8  if they need to be adjusted as they go along.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: My understanding

         10  is you have Penn and Shoen doing the polling; is

         11  that right?

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         13  correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: They are an

         15  expensive firm. We can't get contributed or lesser

         16  costs polling than they? I know they do work for the

         17  President's campaigns in different countries,

         18  including our own. You know, they are not cheap, and

         19  maybe reasonably so, if they do good work.

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, my

         21  view on that is that the first thing we have done

         22  and the first thing that Peter Arnell has done, who

         23  is contributing pro-bono all of his time and all of

         24  his creative staff, is to try and get everything

         25  pro-bono. After that, then we go where we have to
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          2  go.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. But they

          4  are not pro-bono. So why -- my understanding, I

          5  mean. Why does it make sense to use them to do

          6  polling?

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Again, I

          8  am not going to micromanage Peter Arnell. He is a

          9  professional, he has an incredible reputation of

         10  success in the industry and I am going to let him

         11  decide within reasonable parameters what is the best

         12  product that he can get to make this the most

         13  effective ad campaign.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Councilman

         15  Robles.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: The last area,

         17  Commissioner, is on the production of promotional

         18  items such as T-shirts, caps, mugs, flyers,

         19  brochures, posters, decals, et cetera; will you also

         20  be using the 51 Councilmanic offices, that people do

         21  come into our offices so that if you have all of

         22  these things, the flyers, the information, will you

         23  be willing to also open up each Council Member's

         24  Office? Because I know that all of us, each day

         25  people do come through our offices.
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It's a

          3  great idea. We had not thought about it, but it is a

          4  terrific idea. We would be happy to.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Good. Thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, on that

          8  terrific idea, we will move on.

          9                 Councilman Phil Reed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair.

         12                 Commissioner, I have a couple of

         13  areas that I am concerned about, but I didn't want

         14  us to get too far lost from the questions that were

         15  put out by the Commissioner in terms of deployment

         16  of the various classes, the class that graduated in

         17  February '99 and the class that graduated in April

         18  '99, and the ones that have entered or propose to

         19  be in July.

         20                 I think that I have not been able to

         21  keep up with the controversy about your

         22  advertisement campaign, there are too many

         23  controversies this week to keep up with, I had to

         24  sort of limit which ones I focused on. But at least

         25  superficially the ones I saw on TV, the recruitment
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          2  ads, I thought were very well done and looked like

          3  they might very well be effective. So, I wanted to

          4  acknowledge that for you.

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And I must say

          7  firstly that even though we were in the midst of I

          8  think very productive and hopefully fruitful

          9  dialogue with the Police Department about management

         10  areas, the relationship at least that I have with

         11  the precincts in my district remain I think very

         12  strong and I applaud the work of both the leadership

         13  they have been doing and the men, I have had

         14  opportunities to talk with them informally about

         15  what we are trying to get accomplished.

         16                 The Speaker and the City Council just

         17  recently put out, as you mentioned in your comments,

         18  a Blueprint for Change, and the only thing that you

         19  seem to have commented on is the fact that some of

         20  it is old, the Constitution is old but we go back to

         21  it all the time, and that there may be some issues

         22  that you have about the college courses, credits, et

         23  cetera.

         24                 One of the major areas that we

         25  discussed was the aspect of training and that over
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          2  the last several years we have seen a reduction in

          3  the number of days of training and a proposal was

          4  put forth that we -- well, I can see we are going to

          5  have a disagreement about that, let me rephrase it

          6  then. I don't want to get into a debate over that.

          7                 That we add an additional day of

          8  training as part of the blueprint that we put

          9  forward, that we train, these police officers take

         10  them out of the precincts, give them an opportunity

         11  to have training about the specific legalities of

         12  stop and frisk, which seems to have been a problem

         13  that we identified earlier, that there is a lot of

         14  technological things that are happening here, and

         15  then also obviously to deal with the issue of

         16  cultural sensitivity. Do you want to tell me what

         17  your thoughts are on that proposal?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         19  Additional training is always good, but I think

         20  before we talk about one additional day of training,

         21  I think what is important is for the Council to come

         22  and look at our curriculum. One of the things, and I

         23  think you might be surprised on the amount and the

         24  number of hours and days of training that police

         25  officers get each year, but one of the things that I
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          2  recently did was appointed the Board of Visitors to

          3  the Police Academy, which is made up of a very

          4  diverse and I believe a very qualified group of both

          5  academic, religious leaders and community leaders

          6  who are going and are in the process of reviewing

          7  our curriculum very closely and making

          8  recommendations particularly relative to cultural

          9  diversity training and legal training.

         10                 So, we would certainly welcome any

         11  member of the Council to come to the Academy, or

         12  have their staff come to the Academy, look at our

         13  curriculum and talk about how we should implement

         14  additional training after that. But our view, when

         15  we saw one additional day of training, we will take

         16  one additional day, two additional days, additional

         17  training is always good.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I was

         19  just, recently this week, invited to the police

         20  firing range. My staff wasn't sure exactly what that

         21  invitation meant, but I accepted it, so I am going

         22  to be sure to be here at the next Council meeting in

         23  June.

         24                 So, in terms of our recommendations

         25  about hiring consultants to review that, then you
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          2  would have no problem with that piece of it.

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: If the

          4  Council wanted to spend money to hire consultants to

          5  review it, that's fine. My view is the Board of

          6  Visitors is as qualified a group as anybody you are

          7  going to get, they are going to do it for nothing

          8  because they are committed community members, and I

          9  think that is the way we should go.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Do you see a

         11  correlation between the fact that we spend

         12  approximately $20 million in settling lawsuits with

         13  citizens against the Police Department with the lack

         14  of training?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We spend

         16  more money on slip and falls in the City than we do

         17  in settling Police Department cases, and the answer

         18  is I do not.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: You don't think

         20  there is a correlation between training and reducing

         21  the amount of settlement money that we are paying

         22  out every year?

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I think

         24  training will always help reduce mistakes. If I

         25  think there is a direct correlation between why
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          2  Corporation Counsel settles cases relative to blame

          3  or because there is an assessment, that it is better

          4  to settle the case than to litigate it, I am not

          5  sure there is that correlation.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Briefly, there

          7  is two other areas --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Let me just say,

          9  since this is a proposal that the Speaker made,

         10  maybe you could give us what basic information you

         11  have in writing on the Board of Visitors so that we

         12  can assess, you know, this proposal that he made

         13  with respect to a consultant to look into training.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure, I

         15  would be happy to. We are very proud of our Board of

         16  Visitors and I would be happy to have anybody look

         17  at it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Based on who

         19  they are, what their backgrounds are.

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Maybe they are

         22  the functional equivalent of consultants --

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I think

         24  you will find they are.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And if that is
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          2  the case, great.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Is there

          4  anything that you are doing to look at encouraging

          5  police officers to stay on the police force after

          6  they have reached the 20 years and eligible to get

          7  out with a pension and then often times we talk

          8  about the fact that the cadets are not obviously as

          9  experienced, and so we constantly talk about

         10  turnover and perhaps there is a way to reduce that?

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, one

         12  of the things that we have done is we have increased

         13  the number of promotional opportunities for police

         14  officers, hoping that those with seniority would

         15  stay longer.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, finally,

         17  back to my original point that we had asked for that

         18  information and there seemed to be, there seemed to

         19  be a difference of opinion about whether or not you

         20  had received it, what I am going to do is to give

         21  you a copy of this letter myself so that we don't

         22  have a difference of opinion about the next time you

         23  got it, okay?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Great. And

         25  I hope you enjoy the range.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: You could still

          3  have a difference of opinion, because my

          4  recollection is that I specifically gave the letter

          5  on April 29th at the hearing that we had on the SCU

          6  --

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Although

          8  now we did it on tape, so it's fine.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Councilman

         10  Stanley Michels.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman.

         13                 I am very interested in your

         14  statement and the on-line signature pens, so that is

         15  going to be able to reduce the amount of time that

         16  it takes the police to go down and sign the

         17  complaints.

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Exactly.

         19  They will be able to do it from the precincts.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And of course

         21  the complaining witness will also have to go down,

         22  or can the complaining witness also make use of the

         23  on-line signature pens?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I don't

         25  see any reason why not.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay. And you

          3  didn't mention anything, and I think you testified

          4  prior to this about the use of a DNA and what you

          5  are going to be doing about using DNA.

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, one

          7  of the things that we are doing with DNA, as you

          8  know I have made a number of proposals on DNA

          9  because I believe that DNA will have a significant

         10  impact on not only reducing crime but on making sure

         11  that serial burglars, serial car thieves, rapists,

         12  will be caught.

         13                 One of the things --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do you have

         15  anything in the budget with respect to that?

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I think

         17  you will see in the Medical Examiner's budget

         18  significant increase of personnel and equipment for

         19  enhancing the DNA laboratory.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, the

         21  District Attorney did testify on this and testified

         22  that it saved the police a lot of money in having to

         23  go out and eliminating people who were accused of a

         24  crime.

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It will
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          2  save a lot of money.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: He said it

          4  already has.

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, well

          6  certainly no anywhere near where I would like to be,

          7  but it is working great.

          8                 If you look at the serial rapist that

          9  we arrested in the Bronx, this was somebody, had we

         10  had more DNA capacity and databank, there would have

         11  been probably 50 fewer sexual assaults by this

         12  individual between 1993 and the time we arrested

         13  him.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: His

         15  explanation to me was the fact that it eliminated

         16  suspects when they found they didn't have the right

         17  DNA, and therefore he doesn't have to examine where

         18  they were and all of these other things that you

         19  have to find out.

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         21  one of the benefits of having a DNA databank, you

         22  can eliminate suspects and you can make sure that

         23  people who are innocent do not become the subject of

         24  investigations.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: When can we
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          2  expect the other district attorneys to take

          3  advantage of this on-line signature pen?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, I

          5  think we are talking to all of them, and as you

          6  know, each District Attorney is an independent

          7  entity who makes his own policy.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand

          9  that, but this is a policeman's time.

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I agree.

         11  This is something we are pushing --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It

         13  substantially saves time.

         14                 The other thing I want to ask you

         15  about, as you know, and as some of your officers

         16  know, I am very much in favor of the community

         17  policing of the police on the beat. It has been very

         18  successful in my area. I can't speak for any other

         19  areas but I think my area is not so much different

         20  from other areas in the City. In fact we probably

         21  have some bigger problems than most areas in the

         22  City, which should have been resolved and resolved

         23  well. Is it your intention to put many more police

         24  coming out of these classes back into the precinct?

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It is my
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          2  intention --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But you

          4  didn't mention, and I heard nobody mention, as to

          5  whether or not a lot of these or what percentage of

          6  them are going to be assigned to doing community

          7  policing and actually on the beats.

          8                 I know that certain precincts,

          9  certain of the beat officers, the beats need

         10  officers; is that going to be one of the high

         11  priorities?

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Our

         13  priority will be to get more police visibility in

         14  the precincts and a number of beats will be

         15  determined by the precinct commander.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I assume

         17  that. But do you believe that the beat officers in

         18  this program of community policing gives you the

         19  visibility that you desire?

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, I

         21  think it will help the visibility. But, again, as I

         22  have often said, it has to be a balance. And as you

         23  know better than most, Councilman, one of the

         24  reasons for the success and reduction of crime in

         25  your area is a combination of community policing and
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          2  the Northern Manhattan Initiative.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right. And I

          4  think that is a perfect seguay to my next question.

          5                 I do think the North Manhattan Drug

          6  Initiative is a very good program, and continues to

          7  be a very good program, but that is a borough,

          8  meaning the boroughwide initiative, and I really

          9  feel very strongly about them because they get to

         10  know the various precincts in the borough, they know

         11  the neighborhoods and they know the communities very

         12  well. And is that going to be a preferred way of

         13  doing things over and above what the Street Crimes

         14  Unit, which is a Citywide unit -- what is going to

         15  be the balance there?

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The

         17  balance will continue to be the NMI will continue to

         18  work in Northern Manhattan, and when they need

         19  additional resources, they can pull them from other

         20  places, but they will work through the commanding

         21  control of both the precincts and the borough and

         22  the NMI.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What about

         24  the Street Crimes Unit?

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is
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          2  the way they work now, is they will work under the

          3  direction of the borough and the precinct, who on

          4  most occasions when street crimes goes into a

          5  precinct, is at the request of the precinct

          6  commander.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Or the

          8  borough commander.

          9                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Or the

         10  borough commander.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Or the

         12  borough commander.

         13                 I know what you are doing as far as

         14  recruitment, is trying to get more minorities and

         15  minority officers into the Street Crime Unit --

         16                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We have.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But is there

         18  going to be any other reforms, learning from what

         19  has happened in the past, that we can count on to

         20  avoid situations like we found in the Diallo case?

         21                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, as

         22  you know, we have put Street Crime in uniform, and

         23  after a retraining, reorientation we are seeing the

         24  same kind of productivity out of them now that we

         25  saw in the past.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They will

          3  still be able to move the same number of guns from

          4  the street, even though they are on uniform?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We believe

          6  that they will. We are seeing a significant increase

          7  in their productivity over the last month, and we

          8  expect that to continue.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Are they

         10  going to still be in unmarked cars?

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, the

         13  unmarked cars are still there, but they are in

         14  uniform?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's

         16  correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So if anybody

         18  should see them they would immediately know they

         19  were police.

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Nobody

         21  will have any doubt that a street crime officer is a

         22  police officer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay.

         24                 The last question I have for you is a

         25  question I thought long and hard about and it really
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          2  involves the unit that is going to be coming in

          3  after this, after the police leave here, and that is

          4  the CCRB.

          5                 Is there any suggestions that you can

          6  make, or your Department can make, to make the CCRB

          7  more, the reports of the CCRB more useful to you?

          8                 We all know that the CCRB is a body

          9  that does recommendations. They make recommendations

         10  to you and recommendations both as to substantiation

         11  and as to possibly punishment; nevertheless, it is a

         12  de novo proceeding that you do and you listen to

         13  their recommendations.

         14                 Is there something they can do, some

         15  way they can improve either the quality of the

         16  methodology they use to make their recommendations

         17  more useful to you so that you can -- the Department

         18  can utilize their findings and their investigations

         19  and their recommendations so that it would make it

         20  easier for you to make decisions or make decisions

         21  perhaps even better backed up?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, I

         23  think the answer is they have, and we have been

         24  meeting much more frequently with the CCRB and all

         25  of its members. We have been having really good
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          2  talks. The quality of their investigations have

          3  improved, the timeliness of their investigations

          4  have improved, and I have some statistics which I

          5  think are fairly remarkable.

          6                 In 19 --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Before you do

          8  that, I just wanted to make the comment that I think

          9  those of us who have been critical of the CCRB

         10  believe that the only way they can really be better

         11  or more effective is through cooperation with the

         12  Police Department.

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We agree

         14  with that. We agree with that and what we have found

         15  is that Gene Lopez and Mr. Wohl have been incredibly

         16  cooperative and work very closely with us.

         17                 And just let me point out here, you

         18  know, in 1996, 20.7 percent of CCRB referrals

         19  resulted in disciplinary actions. In 1997, 32

         20  percent. In 1998, 47 percent. And so far this year,

         21  52 percent. So, it is clear that the quality of

         22  their investigations are getting better, the

         23  timeliness are getting better, which gives us the

         24  ability to take action.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It still
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          2  seems to indicate there is some room for

          3  improvement.

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, of

          5  course there is always room for improvement, but

          6  there is always --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:

          8  Substantiated, because only -- what did you say 52

          9  percent?

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes. But

         11  again, 52 percent of substantiated cases. And again,

         12  I think as Mr. Wohl will tell you, that the standard

         13  of proof per substantiation is significantly

         14  different than the standard of proof for conviction

         15  in the trial room. And the law that enables the CCRB

         16  top substantiate cases is very different than the

         17  law that enables me to discipline an officer.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand.

         19  I fully understand that.

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I think

         21  the important point is, although there is room for

         22  improvement on both sides, we are certainly going in

         23  the right direction and the numbers are reflecting

         24  that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You talked
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          2  about the recommendations, your determination, where

          3  you make some determinations, and some of those

          4  determinations are also sent down to the police

          5  commander on a lower level to make a disciplinary --

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure, we

          7  do send some back for command disciplines by the

          8  precinct commander or instructions.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Are they

         10  included in that 52 percent?

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, they

         12  are.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay.

         14                 Thank you very much, Commissioner.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: On this matter

         16  of utilization of the CCRB, Ronnie, did you want to

         17  get into that or can I ask?

         18                 On the matter of the utilization of

         19  the CCRB, do you think it would be a good

         20  expenditure of City funds to increase the CCRB's

         21  budget to enable them to eat into their backlog

         22  which is in the area of about 1,400 as of a recent

         23  date?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure. I

         25  would certainly have no problem with any increased
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          2  resources for the CCRB.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay. And, you

          4  have no problem with, you advocate it?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

          6  really not my job to advocate for the CCRB. You

          7  asked me if additional resources --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It bears upon

          9  the functioning of the Police Department, so in that

         10  sense it seems to me that it does relate to you.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: You know,

         12  Mr. Leffler, that that is a budgetary question that

         13  is better addressed to OMB and the CCRB.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: No, I think it

         15  really relates to the Police Commissioner's position

         16  as well.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I gave you

         18  my opinion.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: You think it

         20  would be a good expenditure, okay.

         21                 What is the current backlog of CCRB

         22  substantiated cases at the Police Department?

         23  Approximately, if not exactly.

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: About 700.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Seven-hundred
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          2  cases.

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It's 714,

          4  to be exact.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It's 714. Which

          6  is almost a year's worth, if not more than a year's

          7  worth of substantiated cases that you still have.

          8                 Does the Advocate's Department have

          9  sufficient resources to deal with all of the cases

         10  that you have now gotten which you have just raised

         11  with Councilman Michels? It seems to me there is a

         12  backlog of cases at the NYPD in terms of dealing

         13  with their substantiated cases.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, I

         15  have doubled the size of the Advocate's Office in

         16  the last two years, and one of the things that we

         17  have to deal with, and certainly it is something I

         18  am willing to take a look at, is one of the things

         19  that the CCRB increased its staff last year, as it

         20  decreased its backlog, it increased our backlog.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: No, I

         22  understand. That is what I am referring to. How many

         23  people are in your Advocate's Office?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, there

         25  are 24. There were seven when I became Police
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          2  Commissioner.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Now there are

          4  24. Is 24 a sufficient number to deal promptly?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

          6  just in the CCRB team.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. Is that a

          8  sufficient number so that we can expect this large

          9  backlog of substantiated cases --

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, we

         11  are reducing the backlog and part of that also is a

         12  function of available trial rooms, delays on the

         13  part of respondents, attorneys and all of these kind

         14  of tihngs.

         15                 One of the other things I did which

         16  had a significant impact which is continuing to

         17  reduce the backlog is I hired an additional trial

         18  judge which has helped significantly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: In my

         20  preparation for this hearing I remember going

         21  through, am I not right, many cases were lost even

         22  in the last year because the Statute of Limitations

         23  problem at the Police Department; is that not right?

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I do not

         25  believe that is right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Mr. Grasso, do

          3  you know the answer to that?

          4                 MR. FLYNN: Joseph Flynn, Disciplinary

          5  Assessment Unit.

          6                 In Calendar Year 1998, fully 31

          7  percent of all of the cases that the Police

          8  Commissioner took no disciplinary action and he had

          9  no option to take any disciplinary action --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Because?

         11                 MR. FLYNN: Because the cases came

         12  over after the Statute of Limitations had expired,

         13  or because the officers had left the Department by

         14  the time the cases came over, therefore those cases

         15  were filed or closed out without action.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Have you gotten

         17  --

         18                 MR. FLYNN: In 1999 we have similar

         19  cases, sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

         21                 Does that mean you are still getting

         22  cases which basically no action is being taken by

         23  the Police Commissioner because of Statute of

         24  Limitation Problems at your level, at the NYPD

         25  level?
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          2                 MR. FLYNN: We are still receiving a

          3  few, but it is really very few.

          4                 Mr. Lopez has really marked down,

          5  ratcheted down, that problem to a level that is

          6  nearing zero, nearing acceptability. But the reality

          7  is, because of the reduction of their caseload,

          8  their backlog, which was created under a prior

          9  administration, and by the time they sent the cases

         10  over to --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Say that again.

         12  You are saying that the backlog was created six

         13  years ago and more?

         14                 MR. FLYNN: The cases --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: You are still

         16  attributing the problem to them?

         17                 MR. FLYNN: Actually, sir, that is

         18  really correct.

         19                 The cases that were closed out in

         20  1998 were forwarded to the Police Department in

         21  1997, 1996, and in many cases involved actions which

         22  took place in 1994 and 1995.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is your

         24  administration, though.

         25                 MR. FLYNN: It was --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is your

          3  administration.

          4                 MR. FLYNN: I meant prior to Mr.

          5  Lopez' Administration.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Oh, okay.

          7                 MR. FLYNN: In any event, sir, the few

          8  number of statute of limitation cases is not

          9  impacting the Department seriously at this point but

         10  still any problems are problems.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: When do you

         12  foresee eliminating the backlog of what I think you

         13  said was 714 substantiated -- CCRB substantiated

         14  complaints at the Police Department? It's a large

         15  number.

         16                 MR. FLYNN: Although 714 cases are

         17  technically open, many of those cases are very close

         18  to being closed.

         19                 Right now, out of those 714 cases

         20  there are 51 trials that have been concluded. We

         21  have approximately 50 or thereabouts in which we are

         22  preparing the final reports for the Police

         23  Commissioner's review.

         24                 In another case we have -- pardon me,

         25  actually I said 50 odd, there are about 80 odd of
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          2  those cases.

          3                 We have a number of them that have

          4  been sent out under a program that the Police

          5  Commissioner initiated several months ago in

          6  fast-tracking some of these cases, so although we do

          7  have 714 cases, I believe that within a reasonable

          8  amount of time we could probably actually have of

          9  those 714, excluding any new referrals that come

         10  over, probably dealing with 400 odd cases, sir.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: All right. But

         12  you can project a rate of new cases that you are

         13  going to be getting in the next year.

         14                 MR. FLYNN: Yes, we can.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: The basic

         16  question is, are more resources needed in the

         17  Advocate's office to deal with your CCRB

         18  substantiated complaints. Not to mention the other

         19  cases where some people might think it ought to be

         20  looked at, at least the substantiated complaints.

         21                 MR. FLYNN: I think the Police

         22  Commissioner has really significantly --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I --

         24                 MR. FLYNN: If you could just listen

         25  to me for one second more.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Take the time

          3  you need.

          4                 MR. FLYNN: The Police Commissioner

          5  has really, really built up the resources in the

          6  CCRB team, also in the entire Advocate's Office that

          7  handles the whole range of disciplinary matters, but

          8  in particular with respect to CCRB cases. And since

          9  that implementation has taken place, the reduction

         10  of cases is outpacing the delivery of new cases, so

         11  we see in a timeline that there will come a time

         12  when you have fairly much equal referral and final

         13  disposition of cases.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But you said,

         15  did you not, that you are still dealing with cases

         16  at your level, the Police Commissioner's level, that

         17  originated in 1994, 1995?

         18                 MR. FLYNN: No, that is untrue. Those

         19  cases were closed out in the very, very large amount

         20  of work that was done in late 1997 and 1998. They

         21  have been closed out.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: In 1998 you have

         23  now finished up cases dating back to '94.

         24                 MR. FLYNN: The cases that we are

         25  dealing with now generally involve incidents which
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          2  allegedly took place in 1998 and 1997, and they are

          3  being dealt with now in 1999. And to a large part,

          4  that is because the Civilian Complaint Review Board

          5  is getting the cases over in a more timely fashion,

          6  and somewhat better investigated, and it helps us

          7  process them more quickly.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: What is the

          9  bottom line from this? It seems to me that two,

         10  three years is still a long time for individuals who

         11  have complaints to wait for the disposition of their

         12  cases. Does it make sense to add more resources so

         13  that -- I mean, the Council proposed, you know, I

         14  trust, in March adding more resources for more

         15  personnel in the Advocate's Office and in the NYPD

         16  to respond to requests for information by the CCRB.

         17  Is that a good proposal? I mean, you just said it

         18  made sense to give the money to the CCRB even to,

         19  you know, reduce their backlog.

         20                 MR. FLYNN: The information that the

         21  CCRB relies on to investigate their cases is

         22  actually not delivered by the Department Advocate's

         23  Office. It is delivered --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It is a separate

         25  issue, I realize that.
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          2                 MR. FLYNN: It is delivered in large

          3  part by another unit in the Department.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. That was

          5  not just addressed to you.

          6                 MR. FLYNN: No, but just to clarify

          7  that, the delivery of information has always been a

          8  priority but it has really, it has improved

          9  significantly the rapidity of the turn-around time,

         10  the length of the turn-around time has decreased

         11  significantly to very acceptable levels. They

         12  request the information and we deliver it to them.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: When we asked

         14  the CCRB that question they said that they still

         15  make requests for information that take, in their

         16  view, too long.

         17                 MR. FLYNN: That is a matter that has

         18  been a matter of ongoing discussion with the CCRB,

         19  and I think that we are probably coming to a point

         20  where we see similarly on this.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GRASSO: Mr.

         23  Chair, maybe I can jump in as well. Director Flynn

         24  has gone over the specific numbers, but in terms of,

         25  you know, the question you keep coming back to, do
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          2  we feel definitively that we need more resources in

          3  the Advocate's Office at this time, my sense is the

          4  answer is probably no because we are turning around

          5  the backlog, with the increase that we have seen

          6  over the course of the last two years where you have

          7  got a team now, 24 members of the service, attorneys

          8  and investigators dedicated solely to this.

          9                 In addition to that, we have been

         10  working very cooperatively with the CCRB on the

         11  mediation program, which I know is something that

         12  you have been very focused on, and of late we have

         13  had meetings not only with the CCRB but with the

         14  representatives of the Patrolmen's Benevolent

         15  Association where we are seeing some definite signs

         16  that the PBA is turning around from some

         17  longstanding opposition to mediation and may come

         18  around and become much more cooperative. And then I

         19  think we will be able to use mediation much more

         20  aggressively and that could get better and quicker

         21  results for both, not only the complainants, but

         22  also for the police officers than we have seen, and

         23  we are very big advocates of that.

         24                 And in addition to that, again to

         25  give credit where it is due, as the Police
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          2  Commissioner alluded to earlier with the very

          3  significant improvements that we are seeing in the

          4  last year in CCRB, in terms of the timeliness of

          5  their investigations and the quality of the cases

          6  being turned around to the Department, the better

          7  quality cases we have, the more efficient our

          8  resources can be in the disciplinary system in

          9  disposing of the cases. And that has been a joint

         10  problem historically over the last several years,

         11  for both the Advocate's Office and for the CCRB. I

         12  think what Mr. Flynn was referring to -- I know what

         13  he was referring to when he was speaking of prior

         14  administration, speaking in terms of the hundreds of

         15  cases that had been put in the backlog from the CCRB

         16  between 1993, 1994, 1995 of frankly, very, very poor

         17  quality work that needed to be resolved both by the

         18  CCRB and by the Police Department, and ultimately

         19  the Police Commissioner, in his level by a much

         20  higher standard of the law as provided for in

         21  Administrative Code 14-115, which we know you are

         22  very familiar with and those discussions again

         23  today.

         24                 So, all of the trend indicators right

         25  now are in the positive direction, but this is an
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          2  issue I think we are all going to have to continue

          3  to attend to very carefully.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Just in

          5  conclusion, granted that now the backlog of CCRB

          6  substantiated cases at the Advocate's Office is

          7  being reduced, but it is still at 714 and it still

          8  dates two years, would it make sense then, as the

          9  Council proposed in March to make some additional

         10  allocation of resources to that office?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GRASSO: I think

         12  that as far as from the Department's perspective --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Yes.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GRASSO: That the

         15  team of 24 assigned solely to CCRB cases is a

         16  sufficient allocation of resources, and again, as

         17  Mr. Flynn attempted to point out earlier, those

         18  cases are, you know, they are not all at the same

         19  stage, some of them are relatively new inventory and

         20  take some time, but a lot of them are rather far

         21  along even to the point of completed trial decisions

         22  and formalized recommendations and things like that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you.

         24                 Council Member Ronnie Eldridge.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.
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          2                 Commissioner, can you tell me how

          3  many people are on the Board of Visitors and who

          4  they are? Is it too big a --

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: There is

          6  18, I can't give you the entire list, I can give you

          7  some highlights. It is Richard Green from the Crown

          8  Heights Collective, Eman Poshe from the Malcolm

          9  Shabaz Mosque, Stanley Crouch from the Daily News,

         10  Tom Repetal from the Citizens Crime Commission,

         11  Jules Martin, the former Chief of Housing. But

         12  rather than, you know, speculate, we have a list and

         13  I will be happy to provide it to you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         15                 I would like to know more about the

         16  $10 million for the advertising. The Arnell Group.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Who are

         19  they? What is their background?

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The Arnell

         21  Brands Group is an advertising agency that I believe

         22  does about $300 million business each year. It is

         23  one of the major advertisers, they represent DKNY,

         24  Samsung, Tommy Hilfiger, and are very well known

         25  within the industry.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So when you

          3  say they are doing this on a pro-bono basis, it

          4  means what?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: What it

          6  means is that all of their time, all of their

          7  personnel, is being done for free.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So that is

          9  the production of the commercials?

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: There is not

         12  a salary line for a producer?

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No. There

         14  is no salaries being paid. The only payment would be

         15  they purchase time from the --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Are they

         17  getting a commission on the time?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I assume.

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: They are

         21  not.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: The assessment

         23  of the work by Penn and Schoen.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I am sorry,

         25  I couldn't hear you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It came out

          3  earlier, and the assessment, there is a pollster.

          4  You have Penn and Schoen, you know the pollster for

          5  Penn and Schoen? They are assessing this and

          6  apparently they are being paid.

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, they

          8  will be paid.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, where

         10  there any RFPs issued or this was all arrangements

         11  that were made single sourced or --

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No.

         13  Because it is pro-bono there is no requirement for

         14  an RFP to be issued. All of this was reviewed and

         15  approved by the City Comptroller.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I mean, $10

         17  million is quite a lot of money for a campaign, and

         18  it is just interesting to see, but you are going to

         19  give us an itemized --

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Not only

         21  itemized, it will be audited very carefully, and

         22  again, the Arnell Group is getting no dollars

         23  whatsoever from this.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Can you

         25  explain why the Cadet Program is not going to be
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          2  connected to CUNY or to John Jay?

          3                 What were the factors that lead to

          4  that decision?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The

          6  factors are that many people in the Cadet Program do

          7  not want to necessarily go to a CUNY institution,

          8  and that there are other institutions that provide

          9  criminal justice programs that are very well done.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And John Jay

         11  is not part of it, or is it part of it?

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: John Jay

         13  is certainly not excluded, but they are not the only

         14  school involved.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It seemed to

         16  me that the Cadet Program started at John Jay,

         17  didn't it originally?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE no.

         20                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It started

         21  with the NYPD.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And they

         23  haven't been involved in the development of the

         24  curriculum?

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No.
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          2  Actually if you look at -- one of my concerns about

          3  the John Jay Program was when I looked at the

          4  budget, $564,000 it was a $600,000 budget for the

          5  original John Jay Program, $564,000 went for

          6  professors at John Jay and $40,000 went for cadets.

          7  In our program we don't fund the professorships for

          8  the colleges, we fund the cadets.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Presumably the

         10  professors are teaching things to the cadets.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I am

         12  sorry?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I said

         14  presumably the professors are teaching things to the

         15  cadets.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Right.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: But in our

         18  cadet program, the colleges fund the professorships,

         19  we fund the cadets.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And they pay

         21  the college's tuition.

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And how much

         24  do they pay and what are the colleges that you are

         25  talking about?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: A thousand

          3  dollars a semester.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And give us

          5  an example of the colleges.

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: They could

          7  go to John Jay, they could go to St. Francis, they

          8  can go to any CUNY school, any City college, or any

          9  institution in the City that has an appropriate

         10  course.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And they

         12  just have to take -- I mean, what kind of courses do

         13  they take?

         14                 What I don't understand is that we

         15  have John Jay, the College of Criminal Justice, that

         16  has won an award as being the outstanding forensic

         17  and whatever in the country and we are not, and it

         18  is a public college, City University.

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: John Jay

         20  is a fine institution but there are many other fine

         21  institutions, and in order to get the widest variety

         22  of City residents who want to be police officers and

         23  quality in the Cadet Program, we decided to cast the

         24  net much further, which is not to limit it to John

         25  Jay. And I think that is correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I still don't

          3  understand why. I have no axe to grind for John Jay

          4  one way or another.

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Nor do I.

          6  John Jay is a great school.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. It seems

          8  to me that the ultimate question is, setting forth

          9  standards of education that you want with respect to

         10  the people who are going to be entering into the

         11  Cadet Program, John Jay has, I thought, an

         12  established program which has, you know, certain

         13  quality assurances. If you have 15 different sources

         14  of input, you can have such a range --

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: So does

         16  Columbia and Manhattan, NYU, St. John's, St.

         17  Francis.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Does the

         19  Police Department determine the curriculum in

         20  conjunction with -- I mean, you are picking colleges

         21  that will have secondary -- it is not a major

         22  department.

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, each

         24  school runs its own curriculum, and --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Do you have
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          2  any standards or you just have courses they have to

          3  take or what?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Our

          5  requirements are that they get a certain number of

          6  credits, that they work in the precincts during the

          7  summer and do internships during school, and minimum

          8  academic standards of a four-year degree.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It sounds to

         10  me like it is your version of the voucher program,

         11  right? A voucher program. It is. You can take -- we

         12  will give you $1,000, you can go to any school. I

         13  mean, I am not saying that you have to be publicly

         14  educated, but if you are going to start a police

         15  cadet program, it would make sense to utilize -- I

         16  would think but --

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We can

         18  differ in opinion. I certainly respect your opinion,

         19  but that is not our view.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Can I just say

         21  something?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: What I don't

         24  understand is, it seems to me that you would want to

         25  have certain standards of curriculum that are met

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            106

          1  POLICE DEPARTMENT

          2  like any other professional school. I mean, you

          3  know, when I became a lawyer and went to the firm I

          4  went to --

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes. These

          6  are all accredited colleges which had great

          7  accreditation and with all due respect to John Jay,

          8  it was picked by Newsweek Magazine, not by an

          9  academic institution.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But if you have

         11  a situation where all the people have to do is go to

         12  one of 15 different schools and take --

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The

         14  Council's proposal has no college at all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That was not my

         16  proposal. That is not the Council's proposal. That

         17  was a specific individual's proposal. You know, I

         18  don't consider that to be a response.

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We can

         20  differ. Our response is an accredited college, a

         21  four-year degree.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: And any courses

         23  whatsoever, it's all the same.

         24                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It defies logic.
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It doesn't

          3  defy logic to us because we are requiring college,

          4  the Council's proposal is no college.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Commissioner

          6  Safir, it is not the Council's proposal. It was one

          7  individual's proposal. Really.

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I saw a

          9  lot of Council people standing up there. It says the

         10  Speaker of the City Council.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Blueprint

         13  for Reform.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: And I

         16  didn't see Mr. Vallone standing there by himself.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right.

         18                 But that doesn't mean, like any other

         19  thing, when you have 50 different proposals that are

         20  being brought, 40 of which were already, as you

         21  said, our proposals, this was one.

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Again, our

         23  view is that in an accredited college, in a good,

         24  liberal education it is not required that police

         25  officers become police officers if they have a
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          2  strict criminal justice background. It is not

          3  required.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That they have a

          5  criminal justice background.

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right. It

          7  is not required.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: As long as you

          9  have the credits it is all the same.

         10                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Is that

         11  the way you think the system is going to be ten

         12  years from now?

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, I do.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: All right.

         15                 Council Member Eldridge.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Earlier

         17  today we had a budget hearing with the Department of

         18  Correction and they have 14,000 Correction Officers,

         19  they have a very high amount of Correction Officers

         20  that are people of color, in addition to which they

         21  got 7,300 male Correctional Officers and over 4,000

         22  female. So they seem to be doing a very good

         23  recruiting effort. Have you consulted or looked to

         24  see, or how do you account for the difference in the

         25  breakdown of their personnel?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I do not

          3  know why or what their specific recruitment program

          4  is. It is certainly something that we will be happy

          5  to talk to them about. Although their members take

          6  exactly the same test as we do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Well,

          8  because they said they have 1,897 white Correctional

          9  Officers, 6,305 African-American, 1,855 Latinos, and

         10  219 others, that is a very striking difference.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, we

         12  have 5,413 African-Americans, 7,433 Hispanic, 618

         13  Asians and 26,000 Caucasians. And again, I certainly

         14  would be happy to consult with them.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I didn't ask

         16  them how many live in the City, and I guess I should

         17  have.

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I guess we

         19  could find that out as well. I am sure you are

         20  aware, they take exactly the same entrance test that

         21  the police officers do.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And they

         23  spend $750,000 on recruitment, I mean there is just

         24  a striking difference.

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I don't
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          2  know the answer to that, but I will be happy to look

          3  into it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: On the asset

          5  forfeiture funds, it was the amount of money that

          6  you gave out last year was I think accounted,

          7  according to our staff people, four-tenths of one

          8  percent of the amount received by the Department in

          9  forfeiture funds, and it was the understanding that

         10  the federal government, the US Attorney General, had

         11  suggested that the Police Department should share 15

         12  percent of the asset forfeiture funds with community

         13  groups.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Okay, it

         15  is not a suggestion. What it says in the law is that

         16  you can give up to 15 percent, and what we did is,

         17  in fact, for the last 20 years that this program has

         18  existed, no Police Department asset forfeiture funds

         19  have been given out.

         20                 I instituted the program to give out

         21  funds to community groups and we just began to do it

         22  about six months ago, so that will increase.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I was going

         24  to ask, are you planning to do that on a continuous

         25  basis?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And are you

          4  going to increase the amount of funds?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: In fact,

          6  as typical things work in the City, two years ago I

          7  made a decision to do it and it took until six

          8  months ago before all of the regulatory agencies

          9  finally did the proper approval so we could actually

         10  do it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         12  That's all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: So, hopefully

         14  the amounts will increase over time.

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I would

         16  hope so.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Thank you.

         18                 Councilman Rodriguez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chair.

         21                 I just have a few questions. I sat

         22  through a lot of these budget hearings being a

         23  member of the Finance Committee and I just have a

         24  question.

         25                 When you sat with the Mayor's people
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          2  and you went over your proposed budget, did they ask

          3  that you cut your budget for the coming fiscal year?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: OMB always

          5  asks that we cut our budget.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Did they

          7  recommend a number for you to cut it with?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, we

          9  are all given targets and then we negotiate them and

         10  as a result, that is what you see reflected in our

         11  budget.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Can you

         13  tell me what your target was?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WUENSCH: Joseph

         15  Wuensch, Deputy Commissioner of Management and

         16  Budget.

         17                 There is a percentage that OMB gives

         18  out to different agencies and it varies. A target

         19  was applicable to the January Financial Plan,

         20  another target is applicable to the executive

         21  budget, and as simply an opening of a discussion

         22  with OMB that eventually resolves itself into

         23  conclusions in the Executive Budget.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I asked

         25  that question because as I sat here through all the
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          2  hearings, I kept getting that back from some of the

          3  commissioners and as it developed, the budget

          4  process, I noticed that Cultural Affairs, cultural

          5  programs and institutions got cut $23 million, and

          6  youth programs got cut $20 million, and libraries

          7  got cut $38 million, and then I look at your budget

          8  and I see a $400 million increase, and I sit here

          9  and go, wait, are our priorities right here. Is it

         10  all working correctly?

         11                 So, as I sat here, and I was asking

         12  questions, you may have seen me running around, I

         13  guess there was an increase of about 50 or 100

         14  million dollars as a result of school safety. I

         15  guess that is what I gathered. But if you remove the

         16  50 or 100 million, you are still talking you are

         17  going to have over 300 million of increase for the

         18  police, and I was just wondering, how did you

         19  negotiate to get $300 million more in your budget,

         20  when the youth programs are out there picketing and

         21  they couldn't get $20 million and the libraries

         22  couldn't get 38 and cultural institutions couldn't

         23  get 23, I am just wondering where our priorities

         24  are, and I just wanted to get that on the record

         25  today, and if you have a comment on that I would
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          2  appreciate it.

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, you

          4  know, like any agency we make a case to the Mayor

          5  and to the Office of Management and Budget for

          6  things like the Cadet Program, for things like the

          7  recruiting program, for detective specialist

          8  promotions, school crossing guards, and those are

          9  evaluated and that is how the budget is determined.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let me just

         11  ask one --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Let me just say,

         13  we had a dialogue for some time at the beginning. I

         14  mean, $32 million is for the acceleration of the

         15  class, and that is why it seems to me still that

         16  giving us the plans, specifically in writing, so we

         17  can see the plans that justify the $32 million,

         18  could help determine whether Mr. Rodriguez, as an

         19  intelligent man, says you should do it for the

         20  acceleration or we should do it for more drug

         21  treatment for young people.

         22                 In other words, some people might

         23  well reasonably think that there are other ways of

         24  even dealing with criminal justice problems --

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: And
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          2  certainly you have that prerogative, and we have

          3  gone over and over on this, Mr. Leffler, you know my

          4  position on it, and again, vote your conscience.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But still, are

          6  we going to get the strategic plan that, you know,

          7  more than the one page or not?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I told you

          9  what we would be happy to provide you with, and we

         10  will. And beyond that, as I said, vote your

         11  conscience and if you think that less police

         12  officers are a good thing for your community, by all

         13  means go ahead and vote for less police officers.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: It is not a

         15  matter of vote your conscience, it is a matter of we

         16  would like to see the strategic plan beyond having

         17  our staff chat with your staff.

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The way to

         19  do that is to have your staff come and look at our

         20  detailed plans, we will be happy to do that, they

         21  are always available to you and then you can make a

         22  decision whether or not your community needs more

         23  police officers.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Again -- well,

         25  we will move on with Council Member Rodriguez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I just have

          3  one short question.

          4                 I am looking at a list over here and

          5  it shows the number 200 unit of appropriation which

          6  says that there was a $5 million adopted budget for

          7  it last year, and then it went up to 12 million in

          8  the modified budget and then it went back down to 5

          9  million; can you just tell me what that is all

         10  about? If anybody knows.

         11                 It says here Executive Management.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WUENSCH: Yes,

         13  without being able to look at the details I can't

         14  tell you now. I don't have that document in front of

         15  me.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: It is Unit

         17  of Appropriation 200, Executive Management.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WUENSCH: Yes, I

         19  don't have that document in front of me.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, maybe

         21  we could talk about it later.

         22                 Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Councilwoman

         24  Juanita Watkins, who is the Chair of the

         25  Subcommittee which is going to be meeting after this
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          2  on DAs and Investigations.

          3                 Council Member Watkins.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 Good afternoon.

          7                 Commissioner, one of the things that

          8  I don't believe has been mentioned in the

          9  discussions about recruitment has to do with

         10  increasing the number of women on the force. Has

         11  there been any thought at all in the recruitment

         12  drive and in the suggestion that the Department has

         13  given to the -- is it the Arnell Group? Regarding

         14  increasing the number of females?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, many

         16  of the people involved in both the advertisements

         17  and in our recruiting stations are in fact female,

         18  and we are definitely targeting additional females

         19  in the Department.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Again, on the

         21  subject of recruitment, I understand that you did

         22  touch on the print media and so on as far as the

         23  targeting of minority newspapers and possibly

         24  magazines and so on, but I am concerned about

         25  whether or not this firm has also been directed to
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          2  deal with the radio stations, minority radio

          3  stations, because even those who don't read a lot

          4  listen a lot.

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We in fact

          6  met with all of the minority stations yesterday,

          7  which included WLIB, WWRL, WVLS, WRSH, WADO, KISS

          8  FM, HOT 97, as well as a number of African-American

          9  and Latino publications. So, the answer is yes, and

         10  I might point out, not that it makes a difference,

         11  but it is important to point out that of the five

         12  people who are working for Arnell on this program,

         13  three are African-Americans.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, I think

         15  it does make a difference because nobody knows how

         16  to hit the hot buttons in your community like you

         17  do.

         18                 I am sure everyone realizes that

         19  people very often wear two faces and the public face

         20  and the neighborhood face are not necessarily the

         21  same, so I am pleased to hear that we are working

         22  towards that kind of recruitment.

         23                 And as I listen to my colleague,

         24  Council Member Eldridge, one of the things that came

         25  to mind was, in addition to perhaps consulting with
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          2  the Correction Department, there is no rule that I

          3  am aware of in City civil service against poaching,

          4  and I know that sometimes the Fire Department has

          5  officers who come to the PD and vice versa. I would

          6  think that since there are large numbers of

          7  minorities and probably, I have no facts to actually

          8  back up, but I suspect that there are probably high

          9  numbers of City residents in the Correction's

         10  Department also. Targeting some of your recruitment

         11  drives at that Department might not be a bad idea.

         12  They may have some Correction Officers who might be

         13  interested and ready and able to make that

         14  transition.

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes. There

         16  is nothing to prevent the Correction Officer from

         17  coming over to the Police Department if he has two

         18  years of college.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: That is one

         20  of the places to look perhaps, it sounds like it is

         21  a fertile field.

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, I have

         24  some additional really budget questions which our

         25  staff put a lot of time into, you know, going
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          2  through, ones that deal with overtime, which hasn't

          3  been gone into at all today. You know, I followed

          4  your statements on overtime in your prepared

          5  remarks, there were many different proposed overtime

          6  savings which have been dropped from this Executive

          7  Budget. One group deal with arrest processing where

          8  you changed from a $25 million peg to a 12 and a

          9  half million dollar peg for the next fiscal year.

         10  Why do you think the larger peg was not achieved,

         11  and who was responsible and why are you confident

         12  that this will, in fact, be achieved?

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I think it

         14  will be achieved because we brought our part of the

         15  arrest processing, you know, officer ready time to

         16  about two hours, but we are still working with

         17  various District Attorneys to get the complaint

         18  time, to get the complaint time down more

         19  significantly, and that is why we think we will

         20  achieve the 12 million but we didn't think we would

         21  achieve the 25 million.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: On page 112 of

         23  the Mayor's budget message there is a statement,

         24  "improved arrest processing technology will allow

         25  the Department to reduce arrest overtime by $475,000
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          2  in 2000, and $950,000 annually thereafter. Could you

          3  explain how the use of technology is going to

          4  decrease --

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, that

          6  is the pen that we were talking about.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is the pen,

          8  okay.

          9                 One of the proposed pegs that was

         10  dropped was the rescheduling overtime, the $5

         11  million. Why did you conclude that we couldn't

         12  achieve that peg?

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We believe

         14  we have done as much rescheduling as we can and that

         15  it just was not possible to achieve the additional

         16  $5 million.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: No further

         18  reductions?

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We are

         20  utilizing it to the max, and as you know, we are

         21  constrained by contractual agreements on how we can

         22  reschedule, and we believe that we have done all we

         23  can do within our capability.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: What about the

         25  capacity for handling more events through straight
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          2  time, rather than overtime?

          3                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

          4  always our first option based on available manpower.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well, what

          6  percent of events coverage was paid for through

          7  straight pay?

          8                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, you

          9  have a report that says that, I don't have it in

         10  front of me.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I don't recall

         12  the report. We get a lot of reports, I am not sure

         13  --

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Well, I

         15  will send you another copy of it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: You have no idea

         17  what percentage? That is a big thing when you are

         18  dealing with $147 million --

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I am sure

         20  we have an idea, we will be happy to submit it to

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Excuse me?

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I am sure

         24  we have it, we will be happy to submit it to you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But I am saying,
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          2  out of the $147 million which you say went for

          3  overtime in 1998, no ballpark as to whether most of

          4  it was straight pay, most of it was overtime?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I have

          6  about 150 events here. I will be happy to give you

          7  this sheet or I can read them all for the record, if

          8  you like.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: The net effect.

         10  Are most of your events covered through straight pay

         11  or through overtime?

         12                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It depends

         13  on the particular event, it depends on the day of

         14  the week, it depends what other events are going on

         15  at the same time.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Perhaps along

         17  with what Mr. Markman is giving us on the

         18  civilianization, civilianizable positions, we can

         19  get that at the end of this meeting and we will look

         20  at it.

         21                 The budget says that a new overtime

         22  peg associated with civilianization was originally

         23  in the Preliminary Budget and is included in the new

         24  budget. The two civilianization efforts which we

         25  referred to as Cops More '98, are anticipated to
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          2  generate annual overtime savings of $579,000, it is

          3  said; who will these savings be generated?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WUENSCH: This is

          5  an OMB idea, basically looked at the salaries of a

          6  police officer performing overtime, the main

          7  assumption, a civilian is earning less per hour, so

          8  therefore a civilian overtime is less than uniformed

          9  overtime and that was their calculation.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Well, doesn't

         11  that argue for civilianizing more of the positions

         12  that can be civilianized in the Department?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WUENSCH: That is

         14  just looking at a certain number of individuals who

         15  were already planned to be civilianized, and looking

         16  at whether or not the cost could be cheaper,

         17  utilizing the civilian hour.

         18                 They should give you the

         19  calculations. They have them available.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: With respect to

         21  the Cadet Program, after factoring in your statement

         22  with respect to the numbers of cadets you plan to

         23  take, 600 and then 600, it seems to me that

         24  considering your annual attrition, a very

         25  significant portion of the new entrance into the
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          2  Police Department will be coming from the Cadet

          3  Program in the future, is that the plan?

          4                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, I

          5  think a significant part will come from the Cadet

          6  Program, 600 out of 1,500.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: On an annual

          8  basis?

          9                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That will really

         11  market a significant shift in the people who will

         12  become police officers.

         13                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, that

         14  is the idea and I think it will get quality people.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: That is the

         16  idea, and I think it should be noted.

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

         19                 With respect to the recruitment

         20  program, how many people in the Department are doing

         21  recruitment now?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Sixty

         23  full-time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: How many?

         25                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Six-zero,
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          2  full-time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Right. Is that

          4  sufficient considering the size and the range of

          5  your new recruitment effort?

          6                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: We believe

          7  it is because we have also a program of officers

          8  going back to their high schools who are not

          9  included in that 60, so we have a lot of adjunct

         10  recruiting officers working as well.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay.

         12                 E 9-1-1 we will take up in June, I

         13  think we have agreed on that.

         14                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: But not

         15  June 16th.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But not June

         17  16th.

         18                 But the basic point is, is there

         19  provision in the budget now for all the resources

         20  needed to effectively operate the system that you

         21  plan to have in the next fiscal year?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I believe

         23  there is.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: There is, okay.

         25                 The Stop and Frisk Reports, the
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          2  budget contains a one-time appropriation, does it

          3  not, of a million dollars to contract out the

          4  computerized data entry of the Stop and Frisk

          5  Reports in recent years; what time period is this

          6  going to be covered by that?

          7                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: '94 to

          8  '98.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: '94 to '98, and

         10  how did you choose that period?

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         12  existing records, as far as I know existing complete

         13  records.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: When the data

         15  entry is completed, will the analysis be completed,

         16  or when will the analysis be completed after the

         17  data entry is done?

         18                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: It will

         19  probably take about two months after the data entry.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Will the

         21  analysis then be made available to the public?

         22                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I am not

         23  sure yet but I imagine it will be.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Why don't you

         25  just simply say that it will be?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I imagine

          3  it will be.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, my last

          5  question deals with your automated property

          6  management system. I asked Mr. Wuensch about that at

          7  the capital budget hearing on Friday and he said it

          8  wasn't a capital budget item.

          9                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I got your

         11  statement this morning, and I read it very quickly,

         12  but I still -- it seems to me that this is a system,

         13  a proposed system that was designed to save us by

         14  now about $100 million; is that roughly correct?

         15                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I don't

         16  know where the figure comes from.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: The system was

         18  to be completed when? Originally.

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: 1996.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: 1996. And the

         21  annual savings are projected at how much in terms of

         22  -- I mean, basically you have about 100 people, is

         23  this not correct? How many people do you have who

         24  keep track of property management on an individual

         25  basis now?
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          2                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: While they

          3  are looking for the number, the point of this is,

          4  this is a system that was designed ten years ago, it

          5  went through ten years of development. I reviewed it

          6  no long after I became Police Commissioner, it was

          7  clear to me that it was a system that was not going

          8  to be developed, that the contractor did not have

          9  the capability or the desire to develop it, which is

         10  why we terminated the contract, at the same time

         11  reserving our options to get liquidated damages and

         12  what we intend to do in the future is to use those

         13  monies when they are obtained to go forth with the

         14  new system.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Have you decided

         16  to seek to get damages then from the contractor?

         17                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, we

         18  are working with the Law Department, absolutely, to

         19  go after liquidated damages.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: But I mean

         21  collecting damages in a case like this may take

         22  years; is that not correct?

         23                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is

         24  speculation, I don't know. It depends on the

         25  negotiations and what goes forward.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Why have you

          3  concluded to wait until you recover before then

          4  proceeding to develop an automated system?

          5                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: At this

          6  point that is our plan. But certainly if you want to

          7  add some money to the budget, we will be happy to

          8  take it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I mean, you say

         10  you studied it, I am asking for your conclusion.

         11                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I think

         12  this is a program that needs to be done. It needs to

         13  go forward, we need to resolve this front-end issue

         14  first and we will go forward.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I still don't

         16  understand, if it is an important thing to do, why

         17  wait until the vagaries of litigation are resolved

         18  to begin doing it? I am just asking a question.

         19                 POLICE COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Again, I

         20  think I have answered that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: All right.

         22                 Any other questions for the Police

         23  Commissioner?

         24                 If not, thank you very much,

         25  Commissioner. We look forward to seeing you in June
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          2  on the 30th, and hopefully we will reschedule one of

          3  the additional hearings.

          4                 Mr. Markman, do you want to give us

          5  that material on the civilianizable positions that I

          6  understood that you had with you?

          7                 MR. MARKMAN: I will send it this

          8  afternoon.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: Okay, you will

         10  send it this afternoon. And the events overtime that

         11  we were being shown, we will take that, too.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 3:25 p.m.)
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          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------
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